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[. COMMITTEE MEETING

The Assembly State Government Committee will meet on Monday, February
6, 1989 at 10:00 A.M. in Room 368 of the State House Annex in Trenton. to
consider the following legislation:

A-2533
Charles. Doria

A-3440
Haytaian

Allows certain former members to reenroll in Hud-
son County Employees’' Pension Fund.

Authorizes sale of surplus State personal property
to units of local government.

[I. PUBLIC HEARING

lm}nediately following the conclusion of the comumittee meeting announced
above, the Committee will hold a public hearing concerning the following

legislation: -

A-3421
Pascrell, Cimino

S-2602 [2R]
Russo

Increases special retirement allowance in PFRS;
restricts PFRS membership; assumes funding of
pension adjustments: amends other provisions of
PFRS statute.

Increases special retirement allowance in PFRS:
restricts PFRS membership; assumes funding of
pension adjustments; amends other provisions of
PFRS statute. .

Anyone wishing to testify on this legislation should contact Donald S.
Margeson, Comunittee Aide, at (609) 292-9106.
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ASSEMBLY, No. 3421
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED JUNE 20, 1988

By Assemblymen PASCRELL, CIMINO, Patero,
Foy and Girgenti

AN™ ACT concerning the membership and the retirement of
certain members of the Police and Firemen's Retirement
System, amending and supplementing P.L. 1944, ¢. 255, amending
P.L. 1964, c. 241 and P.L. 1971, c. 175, and repealing section 3 of
P.L. 1982, c. 198.

BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the
State of New Jersey:

1. Section 1 of P.L. 1944, c. 255 (C. 43:16A-1) is amended to
read as follows:

1. As used in this act:

(1) "Retirement system" shall mean the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System of New [ersey as defined in section 2 of this
act.

{2) "Policeman or fireman' shall mean any permanent and
full-time active uniformed employee, and any active permanent
and full-time employee who is a-detective, lineman, fire alarm
operator, or inspector of combustibles of any police or fire
department or any employee of a police or fire department who
was @ member of the retirement system for a period of 15 years
prior to his transfer to a position within the department not
otherwise covered by the retirement system or any officer or
employee serving in the title of assistant superintendent I,
assistant superintendent [I, assistant superintendent [II.
superinténdent [, superintendent [I, superintendent I[II or
administrator, prison complex within the Department of
Corrections who, prior to appointment to any of those titles, was
a member of the retirement system. [t shall also mean any
permanent, active and full-time firefighter or officer employee
of the State of New Jersey, or any political subdivision thereof,
with police powers and holding one of the following titles: motor
vehicles officer, motor vehicles sergeant, motor vehicles
lieutenant, motor vehicles captain, assistant chief, bureau of
enforcement, and chief, bureau of enforcement in the Division of

EXPLANATION--Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets [thus] in the
above bill is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the Taw.

Matter underlined thys is new matter.
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Motor Vehicles, highway patrol officer, sergeant highway patrol
bureau. lieutenant highway patrol bureau, captain highway patrol
bureau, assistant chief highway patrol bureau. and chief highway
patrol bureau in the Division of State Police, alcoholic beverage
control investigator, alcoholic beverage control inspector,
assistant deputy director, bureau of enforcement, and deputy
director, bureau of enforcement in the Division of Alcoholic
Beverage Control, inspector recruit alcoholic beverage control,
inspector alcoholic beverage control. senior inspector alcoholic
beverage control, principal inspector alcoholic beverage control.
and supervising inspector alcoholic beverage: control in the
Division of State Police, conservation officer [, II, I, supervising
conservation officer, and chief, bureau of law enforcement in the
Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife, ranger trainee, ranger, chief
ranger [ and chief ranger Il in the State Park Service. field
section fire warden, chief, Bureau of Forest Fire Management.
State forest fire warden. supervising forester (fire), principal
forester (fire), senior forester (fire), assistant forester (fire).
supervising forest fire warden, division forest fire warden.
assistant division forest fire warden, and section forest fire
warden in the Bureau of Forest Fire Management. Depértment of
Environmental Protection, marine police officer, senior marine
police officer, and principal marine police officer in the Division
of State Police, marine patrolman. senior marine patrolman,
principal marine patrolman. and chief, bureau of marine law
enforcement, State fire marshal, deputy State fire marshal. and
inspector fire safety, Department of Law and Public Safety,
institution fire chief and assistant institution fire chief,
Department of Human Services, correction officer. senior
correction officer, correction officer sergeant, correction officer
lieutenant, correction officer captain, investigator, senior
investigator, principal investigator, assistant chief investigator,
chief investigator and director of custody operations I, [I, [II in
the Department of Corrections, medical security officer,
assistant supervising medical security officer, and supervising
medical security officer in the Department of Human Services,
county detective, lieutenant of county detectives, captain of
county detectives, deputy chief of county detectives, chief of
county ~ detectives. supervising auditor-investigator.
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auditor-investigator, electronics specialist, traffic safety
coordinator-investigator, supervisor of electronics and
investigations, and county investigator in the offices of the
county prosecutors, county sheriff, sheriff's officer, sergeant
sheriff's officer, lieutenant sheriff's officer, captain sheriff's
officer, chief sheriff's officer, -and sheriff's investigator in the
offices of the county sheriffs, county correction officer. county
correction sergeant, county correction lieutenant, county
correction captain. and county deputy warden in the several
county jails, industrial trade instructor and identification officer
in a county of the first class having a population of more than
850,000 inhabitants, cottage officer, head cottage officer,
interstate escort officer, juvenile officer, head juvenile officer,
assistant supervising juvenile officer, and supervising juvenile
officer, chief investigator, assistant chief investigator, senior
investigator and investigator in a county welfare agency in a
cdu.nty of the first class, if the county adopts an ordiﬁance or
resolution, as appropfiate, pursuant to subsection a. of section 2
of P.L. 1985, c. 221 (C. 43:16A-62.3). police officer capitol police
and senior police officer capitol police in the Division of State
Police, patrolman cap?tol police, patrolman institutions, sergeant
patrolman institutions, and supervising patrolman institutions and
patrolman or other police officer of the Board of Commissioners
of the Palisades Interstate Park appointed pursuant to R.S.
32:14-21.

After the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act, however, "policeman or fireman" shall mean

any permanent and full-time active uniformed employee of a

police or fire department., and any active permanent and

full-time employee who is a detective. lineman, fire alarm

operator, or inspector of combustibles of a police or fire

department, appointed or employed subsequent to that effective

date who has received Police Training Commission certification

and, in the case of an employee of a police department, who has

full police powers., has received firearms training, and has

firearms carrying privileges: and shall also mean any person who

is a member of the retirement system on that effective date.

Any employees of a police or fire department who are employed

after that effective date and who do not meet those
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qualifications shall not be members of the retirement system. In

no instance shall an employee of a police or fire department who

was emplovyed prior to the effective date of P.L. 1986. c. 112 and

who shall assume a new title by merit of promotion or a change in

title of position. be denied continued membership in the Police

and Firemen's Retirement System.

(3) "Member" shall mean any policeman or fireman included in
the membership of the retirement system as provided in section 3
of this act.

(4) “Board of trustees” or “board” shall mean the board
provided for in section 13 of this act.

() “Medical board” shall mean the board of physicians
provided fof in section 13 of this act.

(6) “"Employer” shall mean the State of New Jersey, the
county, municipality or political subdivision thereof which pays
the particular policeman or fireman. V

(7) - "Service” shall mean service as a policeman or fireman
paid for by an employer.

(8) "Creditable service" shall mean service rendered for which
credit is allowed as provided under section 4 of this act.

9) ""Regular interest” shall mean interest as determined
annually by the State Treasurer after consultation with the
Directors of the Divisions of Investment and Pensions and the
actuary of the system. It shall bear a reasonable relationship to
the percentage rate of earnings on investments but shall not
exceed 105% of such percentage rate.

(10) "Aggregate contributions” shall mean the sum of all the
amounts, deducted from the compensation of a member or
contributed by him or on his behalf, standing to the credit of his
individual account in the annuity savings fund.

(11) "Annuity" shall mean payments for life derived from the
aggregate contributions of a member. .

(12) “Pension” shall mean payments for life derived from
contributions by the employer.

(13) "Retirement allowance” shall mean the pension plus the
annuity. '

(14) "Earnable compensation” shall mean the full rate of the
salary that would be payable to an employee if he worked the full
normal working time for his position. In cases where salary
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includes maintenance, the retirement system shall fix the value
of that part of the salary not paid in money which shall be
considered under this act.

(15) "Average final compensation” shall mean the average
annual salary upon which contributions are made for the three
years of creditable service immediately preceding his retirement
or death, or it shall mean the average annual salary for which
contributions are made during any three fiscal years of his or her
membership providing the largest possible benefit to the member
or his beneficiary.

(16) “"Retirement” shall mean the termination of the
member's active service with a retirement allowance granted -
and paid under the provisions of this act.

(17) "Annuity reserve’ shall mean the present value of all
payments to be made on account of any annuity or benefit in lieu
of any annuity computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall be adopted by the board of
trustees, and regular interest.

(18) "Pension reserve" shall mean the present value of all
payments to be made on account of any pension or benefit in lieu
of any pension computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall be adopted by the board of -
trustees, and regular interest.

(19) "Actuarial equivalent"” shall mean a benefit of equal value
when computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall be adopted by the board of
trustees, and regular interest.

(20) "Beneficiary” shall mean any person receiving a
retirement allowance or other benefit as provided by this act.

(21) "Child" shall mean a deceased member's or retirant's
unmarried child (a) under the age of 18, or (b) 18 years of age or
older and enrolled in a secondary school, or (c) under the age of
24 and enrolled in a degree program in an institution of higher
education for at least 12 credit hours in each semester, provided
that the member died in active service as a result of an accident
met in the actual performance ofvduty at some definite time and
place, and the death was not the result of the member's willful
misconduct, or (d) of any age who, at the time of the member's
or retirant's death, is disabled because of mental retardation or
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physical incapacity, is unable to do any substantial, gainful work

because of the impairment and his impairment has lasted or can
be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12
months, as affirmed by the medical board.

(22) “Parent” shall mean the parent of a member who was
receiving at least one-half of his support from the member in the
12-month period immediately preceding the member’'s death or
the accident which was the direct cause of the member s death.
The dependency of such a parent will be considered terminated by
marriage of the parent subsequent to the death of the member.

(23) "Widower" shall mean the man to whom-a member or
retirant was married at least two years before the date of her
death and to whom she continued to be married until the date of
her death and who was receiving at least one-half of his support
from the member or retirant in the 12-month period immediately
preceding the member's or retirant's death or the accident
which was the direct cause of the member’'s death. The
dependency of such ‘a widower. will be considered terminated by
marriage of the widower subsequent to the death of the ember or
retirant. In the event of the payment of an accidental death

- benefit, the two-year qualification shall be waived.

(24) "Widow" shall mean the woman to whom a member or
retirant was married at least two years before the date of his
death and to whom he continued to be married until the date of
his death and who has not remarried. In the event of the payment
of an accidental death benefit, the two-year qualification shall
be waived.

(25) "Fiscal year" shall mean any year commencing with July
1, and ending with june 30, next following.

(26) “Compensation” shall mean the base salary, for services
as a member as defined in this act, which is in accordance with
established salary policies of the member's employer for all
employees in the same position but shall not include individual
salary adjustments which are granted primarily in anticipation of
the member's retirement or additional remuneration for
performing temporary duties beyond the regular workday.

(27) "Department"” shail mean any police or fire department of
A municipality or a fire‘departr_nent of a fire district located in a
township or a counfy police or park police department or the
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appropriate department of the State or instrumentality thereof.
(28) "Final compensation’ means the compensation received
by the member in the last 12 months of creditable service
preceding his retirement. '
(cf: P.L. 1986, c. 165,'s. 1)
2. Section 6 of P.L. 1944, c. 255 (C. 43:16A-6) is amended to
read as follows:
6. (1) Upon the written application by a member in service, by

‘one acting in his behalf or by his employer, any member, under 55

years of age, who has had 5 or more years of creditable service
may be retired [, not less than 1 month next following the date of
filing such application,] on an ordinary disability retirement
allowance: provided, that the medical board, after a medical
examination of such member, shall certify that such member is
mentally or physically incapacitated for the performance of his
usual duty and of any other available duty in the department
which his employer is willing to assign to him and that such
incapacity is likely to be permanent and to such an extent that he

_ should be retired.

(2) Upon retirement for ordinary disability, a member shall
receive an ordinary disability retirement allowance which shall
consist of: ‘

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions and

(b) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
member's annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of 1
1/2 % of average final compensation multiplied by his number of
years of creditable service but in no event shall the A total
allowance be less than 40% of the member's average final
compensation.

(3) Upon the receipt of proper proofs of the death of a member
who has retired on an ordinary disability retirement allowance,
there shall be paid to such member's beneficiary, an amount
equal to 3 1/2 times the compensation upon which contributions
by the member to the annuity savings fund were based in the last
year of creditable service; provided, however, that if such death
shall occur after the member shall have attained 55 years of age
the amount payable shall equal 1/2 of such compensation instead
of 3 1/2 times such compensation.

) (cf: P.L. 1971, c. 175, s. 3)
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3. Section 7 of P.L. 1944, c. 255 (C. 43:16A-7) is amended to
read as follows:

7. (1) Upon the written application by a member in service, by
one acting in his behalf or by his employer any member may be
retired [, not less than 1 month next following the date of filing
such application,] on an accidental disability retirement
allowance; provided, that the medical board. after a medical
examination of such member, shall certify that the member is
permanently and totally disabled as a direct result of a traumatic
event occurring during and as a result of the performance of his
regular or assigned duties and that such disability was not the
result of the member's willful negligence and that such member
is mentally or physically incapacitated for the performance of ﬁis
usual duty and of any other available duty in the department
which his employer is willing to assign to him. The application to
accomplish such retirement must be filed within 5 years of the
original traumatic event, but the board of trustees may consider
an application filed after the 5-year period if it can be factually
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the board of trustees that the
disability is due to the accident and the filing was not
accomplished within the 5-year period due to a delayed
manifestation of the disability or to other circumstances beyond
the control of the member.

(2) Upon retirement for accidental disability, a member shall
receive an accidental disability retirement allowance which shall
consist of:

(@) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions and - )

(b) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
member's annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of
2/3 of the member's actual annual compensation for which
contributions were being made at the time of the occurrence of
the accident.

(3) Upon receipt of proper proofs of the death of a member
who has retired on accidental disability retirement allowance,
there shall be paid to such member's beneficiary, an amount
equal to 3 1/2 times the compensation upon which contributions
by the member to the annuity savings fund were based in the last.
year of creditable service; provided, however, that if such death
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shall occur after the member shall have attained 55 years of age
the amount payable shall equal 1/2 of such compensation instead
of 3 1/2 times such compensation.

(4) Permanent and total disability resulting from a
cardiovascular, pulmonary or musculo-skeletal condition which
was not a direct result of a traumatic event occurring in the
performance of duty shall be deemed an ordinary disability.

(cf: P.L. 1971, c. 175, s. 4)

4. Section 16 of P.L. 1964, c. 241 (C. 43:16A-11.1) is amended
to read as follows:

16. Should a member resign after having established 25 years
of creditable service, he may elect “special retirement,”
provided, that such election is communicated by such member to
the retirement system by filing a written application, duly
attested, stating at what time subsequent to the execution and
filing thereof he desires to be retired. He shall receive, in lieu of
the payment provided in section 11, a retirement allowance which
shall consist of: ’

(1) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions, and

(2) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
member's annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of
[60%] 65% of his final compensation, plus 1% of his final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable
service over 25 but not over 30; provided, however, that any
member who has earned, prior to July 1, 1979, more than 30 years
of creditable service. shall receive an additional 1% of his final
compensation for each year of his creditable service over 30.

The board of trustees shall retire him at the time specified or
at such other time within 1 month after the date so specified as
the board finds advisable.

Upon the receipt of proper proofs of the death of such a retired
member, there shall be paid to his beneficiary an amount equal to
one-half of the final compensation received by the member.

(cf: P.L. 1982, c. 198, s. 2)

5. Section 15 of P.L. 1944, c. 255 (C. 43:16A-15) is amended to
read as follows:

15. (1) The contributions required for the support of the '
retirement system shall be made by members and their employers.
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~(2) [Upon the basis of such tables recommended by the actuary
as the board shall adopt and regular interest, the actuary of the
retirement system shall determine for each age at entrance into
the system the percentage of compensation of the member
entering at such age, exclusive of the additional contribution
prescribed by subsections (3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, which, if
deducted from each payment of his 'prospective earnable
compensation throughout active service. is computed to be
sufficient to provide for all benefits on account of his

' membership.]

The uniform percentage contribution rate for members shall be

8.5% of compensation.

(3) [(a) The percentage contribution rate of each member,
exclusive of the additional contribution prescribed by subsections
(3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, shall be fixed according to his age
at entrance into membership and shall be one-half of the total
percentage contribution rate calculated for such age to be
required to provide all benefits except the pensions upon
accidental disability and the benefits payable upon death.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (3)(a) of this
section, the percentage contribution rates for members of the
retirement system exclusive of the additional contribution
prescribed by subsections (3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, shall be
fixed at the contribution rates in effect as of July 1, 1967.

(c) Effective July 1, 1968, all proportions of compensation are
increased by an additional 1% of compensation which is subject to
deductions from the compensation of members or contributions
made on their behalf by their employers in lieu of such deductions.

(d) Upon the effective date of this 1979 amendatory and
supplementary act, all proportions of compensation are increased
by an additional 1% of compensation which is subject to
deductions from the compensation of members or contributions
made on their behalf by their employers in lieu of such
deductions.] (Deleted by amendment. P.L. .c. )

(4) [Each employer shall make a contribution equal to that
made by each member in its employ and in addition shall make a
contribution equal to the percentage of the compensation of each
such member certified by the retirement system to be required to
provide the cost of accidental disability pensions and any death
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beriefits on his account. Notwithstanding this provision, the
retirement system shall certify an average and uniform rate for
payments by all employers, which shall be set on the basis of the
annual actuarial valuations to be sufficient to provide with
previous contributions of employers all benefits for which
employers are responsible. This shall be known as the "normal
contribution. "]

Each employer shall make contributions -equal to the

percentage of compensation of members in its employ as

certified by the board of trustees based on annual actuarial

valuations. The percentage rate of contribution pavabie by

employers shall be determined initially on the basis of the entry

age normal cost method. This shall be known as the "normal

contribution. "

(5) [In addition each employer shall make such contributions. if
any, as is certified by the retirement systemn to be required to
provide for accrued liability arising out of all prior service
granted to members chargeable to such employer.] (Deleted bv
amendment, P.L. .C. )

(6) The percentage rates of contribution payable by [future

members and all] employers pursuant to subsection (4) of this

section shall be subject to adjustment from time to time by the
board of trustees with the advice of the actuary on the basis of
annual actuarial valuations and experience investigations as
provided under section 13, so that the value of future
contributions of members and employers, when taken with
present assets, shall be equal to the value of prospective benefit
payments.

(7) [The retirement system shall certify to the chief fiscal
officer of each employer the percentage of salary payable by
each member and by the employer in behalf of his employee
members. The employer shall cause to be deducted from the
salary of each member the percentage of earnable compensation
of each member. The retirement system shall certify to each
employer the proportion of each member's compensation to be
deducted, and to facilitate the making of deductions it may
modify the deduction required of any member by such an amount
as shall not exceed 1/10 of 1% of the compensation upon the
basis of which such deduction is to be made.] (Deleted by
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amendment, P.L. ,C. )

(8) The deductions provided for herein shall be made
notwithstanding that the minimum salary provided for by law for
any member shall be reduced thereby. Every member shall be
deemed to consent and agree to the deductions made and-
provided for herein, and payment of salary or compensation less
said deduction shall be a full and complete discharge and
acquittance of all claims and demands whatsoever for the service
rendered by such person during the period covered by such
payment. except as to the benefits provided under this act. The
chief fiscal officer of each employer shall certify to the
retirement system in such manner as the retirement system may
prescribe, the amounts deducted: and when deducted shall be paid
into said annuity savings fund, and shall be credited to the
individual account of the member from whose salary said
deduction was made.

(9) Upon the basis of such tables recommended by the actuary
as the board adopts and regular interest. the actuary shall
compute tk}e amount of the unfunded liability as of June 30.
[1971] 1987 which has accrued on the basis of service rendered
prior to July 1, [1971] 1987 by all members, which amount shall

remain frozen and shall be amortized over a period of 40 years [,

including the amount of the liability arising out of prior service
as certified by the retirement system, and including the accrued
liabilities established by P.L. 1964. c. 241 and P.L. 1967, c. 250].
Using the total amount of this unfunded accrued liability, [he] the
actuary shall compute [the] an_increasing amount of {the flat]
annual payment, which is estimated ro remain a level percentage

of prospective total compensation and which, if paid in each

succeeding fiscal year commencing with July 1, [1972] 1988, for a
period of 40 years, will provide for this liability. This shall be
known as the "accrued liability contribution.”

The normal and accrued liability contributions as certified by
the retirement system shall be included in the budget of the
employer and levied and collected in the same manner as any
other taxes are levied and collected for the payment of the
salaries of members.

(10) The treasurer or corresponding officer of the employer
shall pay on or before March 31 in each year to the State
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Treasurer the amount so certified as payable by the employer,
and shall pay monthly to the State Treasurer the amount of the
deductions from the salary of the members in the employ of the
employer, and the State Treasurer shall credit such amount to the
appropriate fund or funds, of the retirement system.

If payment of the full amount of the employer's obligation is
not made within 30 days of the due date established by this act,
interest at the rate of [6%] 10% per annum shall commence to
run against the unpaid balance thereof on the first day after such
thirtieth day.

If payment in full, representing the monthly transmittal and
report of salary deductions, is not made within 15 days of the due
date gstablished by the retirement system, interest at the rate of
[6%] 10% per annum shall commence to run against the total
transmittal of salary deductions for the period on the first day
after such fifteenth day.

(11) The expenses of administration of the retirement system
shall be paid by the State of New Jersey. Each employer shall
reimburse the State for a proportionate share of the amount paid
by the State for administrative expense. This proportion shall be
computed as the number of members under the jurisdiction of
such employer bears to the total number of members in the
system. The pro rata share of the cost of administrative expense
shall be included with the certification by the retirement system
of the employer's contribution to the system.

(12) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the retirement
system shall not be liable for the payment of any pension or other
benefits on account of the employees or beneficiaries of any

_ employer participating in the retirement system, for which

reserves have not been previously created from funds,
contributed by such employer or its employees for such benefits.
(13) [Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, the
Legislature shall annually appropriate and the State Treasurer
shall pay into. the contingent reserve fund of the retirement
system an amount -calculated as an increase in the normal
contribution which will provide for the additional liability
required to fund the benefits provided by this amendatory and
supplementary act. Any saving realized by the retirement system
as a result of any future increase in "regular interest” as
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determined annually by the State Treasurer shall be applied by
the actuary towards meeting the cost of this additional liability.]
{Deieted by amendment, P.L. ,C. )
(cf: P.L. 1979, c. 109, s. 1)

6. Section 21 of P.L. 1971. ¢. 175 (C. 43:16A-15.4) is amended
to read as follows:

21. The accrued liability contribution of any employer
adopting the retirement system after July 1, [1971] 1987 for the
purpose of providing prior service credit. shall be payable by the
employer to the pension accumulation fund over [a] the period [of
not less than 25 years] selected by the emplover. provided that

the period may not exceed 40 years following the initial valuation

. of such liability by the actuary of the retirement system.

(cf: P.L. 1971, c. 175, s. 21)

7. (New section) Pension adjustment benefits for members and
beneficiaries of the Police and Firemen's Retirement System of
New Jersey as provided by P.L. 1969, c. 169 (C. 43:3B-1 et seq.)
shall be paid by the retirement system and shall be funded as
employer obligations in a similar manner to that provided for the
funding of employer obligations for the retirement benefits
provided by the retirement system. The value of anticipated
future adjustments for active members as of and after July 1,
1987 shall be funded as a percentage. of prospective total
compensation on the assumption that the funding level for the
cost of these adjustments will be phased in over a period not to
exceed 40 years.

8. (New section) Notwithstanding the provisions of the
"Pension Adjustment Act,” P.L. 1969, c. 169 (C. 43:B-1 et seq.),
pension adjustment benefits provided for under the act for
members and beneficiaries of the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System of New Jersey shall be paid by the retirement
system and shall be funded as employer obligations in the manner

. prescribed for the funding of pension adjustment benefits by the

retirement system by this 1988 amendatory and supplementary
act, P.L. ,c. [C. ).
9. Section 3 of P.L. 1982, c. 198 (C. 43:16A-11.1a) is repealed.
10. This act shall take effect immediately, except that the
amendment to subsection {2) of section 15 of P.L. 1944, c. 255 (C.
43:16A-15) in section 5 of this amendatory and supplementary
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act shall take effect on the first day of the calendar quarter
following the date of enactment by at least two months.

STATEMENT

This bill increases the special retirement allowance after 25
years of creditable service in the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System from 60% of final compensation to 65%.

The bill also provides that future membership in PFRS shall be
retricted to “permanent and full-time active uniformed”
employees, and certain other employees, of a police or fire
department who are employed after the effective ddte of this act
and who have received Police Training Commission certification
and, in the case of employees of a police department, have full
police powers, have received firearms training, and have firearms
carrying privileges.

Other provisions of the bill include:

(1) PFRS assumption of the funding of pension adjustments for
retirants; :

(2) the establishment of a uniform rate of contribution for PFRS
members of 8.5% of compensation; and

(3) the re-amortization of the system's unfunded liability as of
June 30, 1987 over a period of 40 years.

PENSIONS AND RETIREMENT
Police Officers

Increases special retirement allowance in PFRS; restricts PFRS
membership; assumes funding of pension adjustments; amends
other provisions of PFRS statute.
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SENATE, No. 2602
STATE OF NEW JERSEY

INTRODUCED MAY 26, 1988
By Senator RUSSO

AN ACT concerning the membership and the retirement of
certain members of the Police and Firemen's Retirement
System, amending and supplementing P.L.1944, c. 255, [and]!
amending P.L.1964, c.241 and P.L.1971, c.175. and repealing
Isection 3 of P.L.1979, c.109! and section 3 of P.L.1982, ¢.198.

BE IT ENACTED by the Senate and General Assembly of the
State of New Jersey: '

1. Section 1 of P.L.1944, c.255 (C.43:16A-1) is amended to
read as follows:

1. As used in this act:

(1) "Retirement system" shall mean the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System of New Jersey as defined in section 2 of this
act. ’

(2) U"Policeman or fireman" shall mean any permanent and

" full-time active uniformed employee, and any active permanent

and full-time employee who is a detective, lineman, fire alarm
operélor, or inspector of combustibles of any police or fire
department or any employee of a police or fire department who
was a member of the retirement system for a period of 15 years
prior to his transfer to a position within the department not
otherwise covered by the retirement system or any officer or
employee serving in the title of assistant superintendent I,
assistant superin{endent II, assistant superintendent III,
superintendent [, superintendent I, superintendent I[II or
administrator, prison complex within the Department of
Corrections who, prior to appointment to any of those titles, was
a member of the retirement system. It shall also mean any
permanent, active and full-time firefighter or officer -employee
of the State of New Jersey, or any political subdivision thereof,
with police powers and holding one of the following titles: motor

EXPLANATION—Matter enclosed in bold-faced brackets (thus] in the
above bill is not enacted and is intended to be omitted in the law. -

Matter underlined thys is new matter.

qatter enclosed in superscript numerals has been adopted as follows:

Senate SSG committee amendments adopted June 23, 1988.
Senate SRF committee amendments adopted September 19, 1988.
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vehicles officer, motor vehicles sergeant, motor vehicles
lieutenant, motor vehicles captain, assistant chief, bureau of
enforcement, and chief, bureau of enforcement in the Division of
Motor Vehicles, highway patrol officer, sergeant highway patrol
bureau, lieutenant highway patrol bureau, captain highway patrol
bureau, assistant chief highway patrol bureau, and chief highway -
patrol bureau in the Division of State Police, alcoholic beverage
control investigator, alcoholic beverage control inspector,
assistant deputy director, bureau of enforcement, and deputy
director, bureau of enforcement in the Division of Alcoholic
Beverage Control, inspector recruit alcoholic beverage control,
inspector alcohgolic beverage control, senior inspector alcoholic
beverage control, principal inspector alcoholic beverage control,
and supervising inspector alcoholic beverage control in the
Division of State Police, conservation officer I, {I, IIl. supervising
conservation officer, and chief, bureau of law enforcement in the
Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife, ranger trainee, ranger, chief
ranger | and chief ranger II in the State Park Service. field
section fire warden, chief, Bureau of Forest Fire Management,
State forest fire warden, supervising forester (fire), principal
forester (fire), senior forpster (fire), assistant forester (fire),
supervising forest fire warden, division forest fire warden,
assistant division forest fire warden, and section forest fire
warden in the Bureau of Forest Fire Management, Department of
Environmental Protection. marine police officer, senior marine
police officer. and principal marine police officer in the Division
of State Police, marine patrolman, senior marine patrolman.
principal marine patrolman., and chief, bureau of marine law
enfarcement, State fire marshal, deputy State fire marshal, and
inspector fire safety, Department of Law and Public Safety,
institution fire chief and assistant institution fire chief,
Department of Human Services, correction officer, senior
correction officer, correction officer sergeant, correction officer
lieutenant, correction officer captain, investigator, senior
investigator, principal investigator, assistant chief investigator,
chief investigator and director of custody operations [, I, I in-
the Department of Corrections, medical security officer,
assistant supervising medical security officer, and supervising
medical security officer in the Department of Human Services:

county detective, lieutenant of county detectives, captain of
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county detectives, deputy chief of county detectives,

chief of county detectives, supervising auditor-investigator,

auditor-investigator. electronics specialist, traffic safety
coordinator-investigator, supervisor of electronics and
investigations, and county investigator in the offices of the
county prosecutors, county sheriff, sheriff's officer, sergeant
sheriff's officer, lieutenant_ sheriff's officer, captain sheriff's
officer, chief sheriff's officer, and sheriff's investigator in the
offices of the county sheriffs, county correction officer, county
correction sergeant, county correction lieutenant, county
correction captain, and county deputy warden in the several
county'jails. industrial trade instructor and identification officer
in a county of the first class having a population of more than
850,000 inhabitants, cottage officer, head cottage officer,
interstate escort officer, juvenile officer, head juvenile officer,
assistant supervising juvenile officer, and supervising juvenile
officer, chief investigator, assistant chief investigator, senior
investigator and investigator in a county welfare agency in a
county of the first class, if the county adopts an ordinance or
resolution, as appropriate, pursuant to subsection a. of section 2
of P.L.1985, c.221 (C.43:16A-62.3), police officer capitol police
and senior police officer capitol police in the Division of State
Police, patrolman capitol police, patrolman-institutions, sergeant
patrolman institutions, and supervising patrolman institutions and
patrolman or other police officer of the Board of Commissioners
of the Palisades Interstate Park appointed pursuant to
R.S.32:14-21.

After the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act, however, "policeman or fireman" shall mean

any permanent and full-time active uniformed employee of a

police oc_fire department, and any active permanent and

full-time employee who is a detective, lineman, fire alarm

operator, or inspector of combustibles of a police or fire

department, appointed or employed subsequent to that effective

date who has received Police Training Commission certification

and, in the case of an employee of a police department, who has

full police powers, has received firearms training, and has

firearms carrying privileges; and shall also mean any person who

is a member of the retirement system on that effective
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date. Any employees of a police or fire department who are

employed after that effective date and who do not meet those

qualifications shall not be members of the retirement system. In

no instance shall an employee of a police or fire department who

was employed prior to the effective date of P.L.1986, c.112 and

who shall assume. a new title by merit of promotion or a change in

title of position be denied continued membership in the Police
and Firemen's Retirement System.]

(a) "Policeman" shall mean a permanent, full-time employee

of a law enforcement unit as defined in section 2 of P.L.1961,

c.56 (C.52:17B-67) or the State, other than an officer or trooper

of the Division of State Police whose position is covered by the

State Police Retirement System, whose primary duties include

the investigation, apprehension or detention of persons suspected

or convicted of violating the criminal laws of the State and who:

(i) _is authorized to carry a firearm while engaged in the actual

performance of his official duties:

(ii) has police powers;

(iii) is required to complete successfully the training
requirements prescribed by P.L.1961, c.56 (C.52:17B-66 et seq.)

or comparable training requirements as determined by the board

of trustees; and
(iv) is subject to the physical and mental fitness requirements

applicable to the position of municipal police officer established

by an agency authorized to establish these requirements on a

Statewide basis. or comparable physical and mental fitness
requirements as determined by the board of trustees.

The term shall also include an administrative or supervisory

employee of a law enforcement unit or the State whose duties

include general or direct supervision of employees engaged in

investigation, apprehension or detention activities or training

responsibility for these employees and a requirement for

engagement in investigation, apprehension or detention activities

if necessary, and who is authorized to carry a firearm while in

the actual performance of his official duties and has police

WErS.

(b)_"Fireman" shall mean a permanent, full-time employee of

a firefighting unit whose primary duties include the control and

- extinguishment of fires and who is subject to the training and
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physical and mental fitness requirements applicable to the

position of municipal firefighter established by an_ agency

authorized to establish these requirements on a Statewide basis,

or _comparable training and physical and mental fitness

requirements as determined by the board of trustees. The term

shall also include an administrative or supervisory employee of a

“firefighting unit whose duties include general or direct

supervision of employees engaged in fire control and

extinguishment activities or .training responsibility for these

emplovees and a requirement for engagement in fire control and

extinguishment activities if necessary. As used in this paragraph,

"firefighting unit"” shall mean a municipal fire department, a fire

district, or an agency of a county or the State which is

responsible for control and extinguishment of fires. !

(3) "Member" shall mean any policeman or fireman included in
the membership of the retirement system l{as provided in section
3 of this act] pursuant to this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary actl.

(4) "Board of trustees” or "board" shall mean the board
provided for,in section 13 of this act.

(5) "Medical board" shall mean the ,boargi of physicians
provided for in section 13 of this act.

(6) "Employer” shall mean the State of New jersey, the
county, municipality or political subdivision thereof which pays
the particular policeman or fireman.

{7) "Service” shall mean service as a policeman or fireman
paid for by an employer.

(8) "Creditable service” shall mean service rendered for which
credit is allowed as provided under section 4 of this act.

(9) "Regular interest" shall mean interest as determined
annually by the State Treasurer after consultatioﬁ with the
Directors of the Divisions of I[nvestment and Pensions and the
actuary of the system. [t shall bear a reasonable relationship to
the percentage rate of earnings on investments but shall not
exceed 105% of such percentage rate.

(10) "Aggregate contributions" shall mean the sum of all the
amounts, deducted from the compensation of a member or
contributed by him or on his behalf, standing to the credit of his
individual account in the annuity savings fund.
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(11) "Annuity” shall mean payments for life derived from the
aggregate contributions of a member.

(12) "Pension” shall mean payments for life derived from
contributions by the employer.

(13) "Retirement allowance" shall mean the pension plus the
annuity.

(14) "Earnable compensation” shall mean the full rate of the
salary that wouid be payable to an employee if he worked the full
normal working time for his position. In cases where salary
includes maintenance, the retirement system shall fix the value
of that part of the salary not paid in money which shall be
considered under this act.

(15) "Average final compensation” shall mean the average
annual salary upon which contributions are made for the three
years of creditable service immediately preceding his retirement
or death, or it shall mean the average annual salary for which
contributions are made during any three fiscal years of his or her
membership providing the largest possible benefit to the member
or his beneficiary.

(16) "Retirement” shall mean the termination of the
member's active service with a retirement allowance granted
and paid under the provisions of this act. ’

(17) " Annuity reserve” shall mean the present value of all
payments to be made on account of any annuity or benefit in lieu
of any annuity computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall be adopted by the board of
trustees, and regular interest.

(18) "Pension reserve” shall mean the present value of all
payments to be made on account of any pension or benefit in lieu
of any pension computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall he adopted by the board of
trustees, and regular interest.

(19) "Actuarial equivalent” shall mean a benefit of equal value
when computed upon the basis of such mortality tables
recommended by the actuary as shall be adopted by the board of
trustees, and regular interest.

(20) “Beneficiary” shall mean any person receiving a
retirement allowance or other benefit as provided by this act.

(21) "Child" shall mean a deceased member's or retirant's
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unmarried child (a) under the age of 18, or (b) 18 years of age or
older and enrolled in a secondary school, or (c) under the age of
24 and enrolled in a degree program in an institution of higher
education for at least 12 credit hours in each semester, provided
that the member died in active service as a result of an accident
met in the actual performance of duty at some definite time and
place, and the death was not the result of the member's willful
misconduct, or (d) of any age who, at the time of the member’s
or retirant's death, is disabled because of mental retardation or
physical incapacity, is unable to do any substantial, gainful work
because of the impairment and his impairment has lasted or can
be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12
months, as affirmed by the medical board.

(22) "Parent" shall mean the parent of a member who was
receiving at least one-half of his support from the member in the
12-month period immediately preceding the member's death or
the accident which was the direct cause of the member's death.
The dependency of such a parent will be considered terminated by
marriage of the parent subsequent to the death of the member.

(23) "Widower" shall mean the man to whom a member or
retirant was married at least two.years before the date of her
death and to whom she continued to be married until the date of
her death and who was receivink at least one-half of his support
from the member or retirant in the 12-month period immediately
preceding the member's or retirant's death or the accident
which was the direct cause of the member's death. The
dependency of such a widower will be considered terminated hy
marriage of the widower subsequent to the death of the ember or
retirant. In the event of the payment of an accidental death
benefit, the two-year qualification shall be waived.

(24) "Widow" shall mean the.woman to whom a merr;ber or
retirant was married at least two years before the date of his
death and to whom he continued to be married until the date of
his death and who has not remarried. In the event of the payment
of an accidental death benefit, the two-year qualification shall
be waived.

(25) "Fiscal year" shall mean any year commencing with July
1, and ending with June 30, next following.

(26) "Compensation" shall mean the base salary, for services
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as a member as defined in this act, which is in accordance with
established salary policies of the member's employer for all
employees in the same position but shall not include individual
salary adjustments which are granted primarily in anticipation of
the member's retirement or additional remuneration for
performing temporary duties beyond the regular workday.

(27) "Department” shall mean any police or fire department of
a municipality or a fire department of a fire district located in a
township or a county police or park police department or the
appropriate department of the State or instrumentality thereof.

(28) "Final compensation” means the compensation received
by the member in the last 12 months of creditable service
preceding his retirement.

(cf: P.L.1986, c.165, s.1)

2. Section 6 of P.L.1944, ¢.255 (C.43:16A-6) is amended to
read as follows:

6. (1) Upon the written application by a member in service, by
one acting in his behalf or by his employer, any member, under 55
years of age, who has had 5 or more years of creditable service
may be retired [, not less than 1 month next following the date of
filing such application,] on an ordinary disability retirement
allowance; provided, that the medical board, after a medical
examination of such member, shall certify that such member is
mentally or physically incapacitated for the performance of his
usual duty and of any other available duty in the department
which his employer is willing to assign to him and that such
incapacity is likely to be permanent and to such an extent that he
should be retired.

(2) Upon retirement for ordinary disability, a member shall
receive an ordinary disability retirement allowance which shall
consist of:

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions and '

(b) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
member's annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of 1
1/2 % of average final compensation multiplied by his number of
years of creditable service but in no event shall the total
allowance be less than 40% of the member's average final
compensation.
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(3) Upon the receipt of proper proofs of the death of a member
who has retired on an ordinary disability retirement allowance.
there shall be paid to such member's beneficiary, an amount
equal to 3 1/2 times the compensation upon which contributions
by the member to the annuity savings fund were based in the last
year of creditable service; provided, however, that if such death
shall occur after the member shall have attained 55 years of age
the amount payable shall equal 1/2 of such compensation instead
of 3 1/2 times such compensation.

(cf: P.L.1971, ¢.175, 5.3)

3. Section 7 of P.L.1944, ¢.255 (C.43:16A-7) is amended to
read as follows:

7. (1) Upon the written application by a member in service, by
one acting in his behalf or by his employer any member may be
retired [, not less than 1 month next following the date of filing
such application,] on an accidental disability retirement
allowance; provided, that the medical board. after a medical
examination of such member, shall certify that the member is
permanently and totally disabled as a direct result of a traumatic
event occurring during and as a result of the performance of his
regular or assigned duties and that such disability was not the
result of the member's willful negligence and that such member
is mentally or physically incapacitated for the performance of his
usual duty and of any other available duty in the department
which his employer is willing to assign to him. The application to
accomplish such retirement must be filed within 5 years of the
original traumatic even"(. but the board of trustees may consider
an application filed after the 5-year period if it can be factually
demonstrated to the satisfaction of the board of trustees that the
disability is due to the accident and the filing was not
accomplished within the 5-year period due to a delayed
manifestation of the disability or to other circumstances beyond
the control of the member.

(2) Upon retirement for accidental disability, a member shall
receive an accidental disability retirement allowance which shall
consist of: »

(a) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions and

(b) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
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member’'s annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of
2/3 of the member's actual annual compensation for which
contributions were being made at the time of the occurrence of
the accident.

(3) Upon receipt of proper proofs of the death of a member
who has retired on accidental disability retirement allowance,
there shall be paid to such member's beneficiary, an amount
equal to 3 1/2 times the compensation upon which contributions
by the member to the annuity savings fund were based in the last
year of creditable service; provided, however, that if such death
shall occur after the member shall have attained 55 years of age
the amount payable shall equal 1/2 of such compensation instead
of 3 1/2 times such compensation.

(4) Permanent and total disability resulting from a
cardiovascular, pulmonary or musculo-skeletal condition which
was not a direct result of a traumatic event occurring in the
performance of duty shall be deemed an ordinary disability. -

(cf: P.L.1971, ¢.175, s.4)

4. Section 16 of P.L.1964, c.241 (C.43:16A-11.1) is amended to
read as follows:

16. Should a member resign after having established 25 years
of creditable service, he may elect "special retirement,”
provided. that such election is communicated by such member to
the retirement system by filing a written application, duly
attested, stating at what time subsequent to the execution and
filing thereof he desires to be retired. He shall receive, in lieu of

-the payment provided in section 11, a retirement allowance which

shall consist of:

(1) An annuity which shall be the actuarial equivalent of his
aggregate contributions, and

(2) A pension in the amount which, when added to the
member's annuity, will provide a total retirement allowance of
[60%] 65% of his final compensation, plus 1% of his final
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable
service over 25 but not over 30; provided, however, that any
member who has earned. prior to July 1, 1979, more than 30 years
of creditable service, shall receive an additional 1% of his final
compensation for each year of his crgditable service over 30.

The board of trustees shall retire him at the time specified or
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at such other time within 1 month after the date so specified as
the board finds advisable.

Upon the receipt of proper proofs of the death of such a retired
member, there shall be paid to his beneficiary an amount equal to
one-half of the final compensation received.by the member.

(cf: P.L.1982, c.198. s.2)

5. Section 15 of P.L.1944, ¢.255 (C.43:16A-15) is amended to
read as follows:

15. (1) The contributions required for the support of the
retirement system shall be made by members and their employers.

(2) [Upon the basis of such tables recommended by the actuary
as the board shall adopt and regular interest, the actuary of the
retirement system shall determine for each age at entrance into
the system the percentage of compensation of the member
entering at such age, exclusive of thé additional contribution
prescribed by subsections (3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, which, if
deducted from each payment of his prospective earnable
compensation throughout active service, is computed to be
sufficient to provide for all benefits on account of his
membership.] -

The uniform percentage contribution rate for members shall be

8.5% of compensation.

(3) {(a) The percentage contribution rate qf each member.
exclusive of the additional contribution prescribed by subsections
(3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, shall be fixed according to his age
at entrance into membership and shall be one-half of the total
percentage contribution ratz calculated for such age to be
required to provide all benefits except the pensions upon
accidental disability and the benefits payable upon death.

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (3)(a) of this
section, the percentage contribution rates for members of the
retirement system exclusive of the additional contribution
prescribed by subsections (3)(c) and (3)(d) of this section, shall be
fixed at the contribution rates in effect as of July 1. 1967.

(c) Effective July 1, 1968, all proportions of compensation are
increased by an additional 1% of compensation which is subject
to deductions from the compensation of members or contributions
made on their behalf by their employers in lieu of such deductions.

‘(d) Upon the effective date of this 1979 amendatory and
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supplementary act, all proportions of compensation are increased
by an additional 1% of compensation which is subject to
deductions from the compensation of members or contributions
made on their behalf by their employers; in lieu of such
deductions.] (Deleted by amendment, P.L. ,C. ) '
(4) [Each employer shall make a contribution equal to that

made by each member in its employ and in addition shall make a
contribution equal to the percentage of the compensation of each
such member certified by the retirement system to be required to
provide the cost of accidental disability pensions and any death
benefits on his account. Notwithstanding this provision, the
retirement system shall certify an average and uniform rate for
payments by all employers, which shall be set on the basis of the
annual actuarial valuations to be sufficient to provide with
previous contributions of employers all benefits for which
employers are responsible. This shall be known as the "normal
contribution. "}

Each employer shall make contributions equal to the

percentage of compensation of members in its employ as

certified by the board of trustees based on annual actuarial

valuations. The percentage rate of contribution payable by
employers ‘shall be determined initially on the basis of the entry

age normal cost method. This shall be known as the "normal

contribution.”

(5) [In addition each employer shall make such contributions, if
any, as is certified by the retirement system to be required to
provide for accrued liability arising out of all prior service
granted to members chargeable to such employer.] (Deleted by
amendment, P.L. .C. )

(6) The percentage rates of contribution payable by [future
members and all] employers pursuant to subsection (4) of this

section shall be subject to adjustment from time to time by the
board of trustees with the advice of the actuary on the basis of
annual actuarial valuations and experience investigations as
provided under section 13, so that the value of future
contributions of members and employers, when taken with
present assets, shall be equal to the value of prospective benefit
payments.

(7) [The retirement system shall certify to the chief fiscal
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officer of each employer the percentage of salary payable by
each member and by the employer in behalf of his employee
members. The employer shall cause to be deducted from the
salary of each member the percentage of earnable compensation
of each member. The retirement system shall certify to each
employer the proportion of each member's compensation to be
deducted, and to facilitate the making of deductions it may
modify the deduction required of any member by such an amount
as shall not exceed 1/10 of 1% of the compensation upon the
basis of which such deduction is to be made.] 1[(Deleted by
amendment, P.L. ,c. )l

Each employer shall cause to the deducted from the salary of

each member the percentage of earnable compensation

prescribed in subsection (2) of this section. To facilitate the

making of deductions, the retirement system may modify the

amount of deduction required of any member by an amount not to

exceed 1/10 of 1% of the compensation upon which the deduction

is based. 1 .

(8) The deductions provided for herein shall be made
notwithstanding that the minimum salary provided for by law for
any member shall be reduced thereby. Every member shall be
deemed to consent and agree to the deductions made and
provided foi' herein, and payment of salary or compensation less
said deduction shall be a full and compléete discharge and
acquittance of all claims and demands whatsoever for the service
rendered by such person during the period covered by such
payment, except as to the benefits provided under this act. The
chief fiscal officer of each employer shall certify to the
retirement system in such manner as the retirement system may
prescribe, the amounts deducted; and when deducted shall be paid
into said annuity savings fund, and shall be credited to the
individual account of the member from whose salary said
deduction was made.

(9) Upon the basis of such tables recommended by the actuary
as the board adopts and regular interest, the actuary shall
compute the amount of the unfunded liability as of June 30.
[1971] 1987 which has accrued on the basis of service rendered
prior to July 1, [1971] 1987 by all members, which amount shall

remain frozen and shall be amortized over a period {of] not to
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exceed! 40 years las determined by the State Treasurer! [,

including the amount of the liability arising out of prior service
as certified by the retirement system, and including the accrued
liabilities established by P.L.1964, c.241 and P.L.1967, c.250l.
Using the total amount of this unfunded accrued liability, [he] the
actuary shall compute [the] an increasing amount of [the flat]
annual payment, which is estimated to remain a level percentage

of prospective total compensation and which, if paid in each

succeeding fiscal year commencing with July 1, [1972] 1988, for
Ifa period of 40 years] the period determined by the State

Treasurerl, will provide for this liability. This shall be known as
the "accrued liability contribution.”

The normal and accrued liability contributions as certified by
the retirement system shall be included in the budget of the
employer and levied and collected in the same manner as any
other taxes are levied and collected for the payment of the
salaries of members.

(10) The treasurer or corresponding officer of the employer
shall pay on or before March 31 in each year to the State
Treasurer the amount so certified as payable by the employer,
and shall pay monthly to the State Treasurer the amount of the
deductions from the salary of the members in the employ of the
employer, and the State Treasurer shall credit such amount to the
appropriate fund or funds, of the retirement system.

If payment of the full amount of the employer's obligation is
not made within 30 days of the due date established by this act,
interest at the rate of [6%] 10% per annum shail commence to
run against the unpaid balance thereof on the first day after such
thirtieth day.

[f payment in full, representing the monthly transmittal and
report of salary deductions, is not made within 15 days of the due
date established by the retirement system, interest at the rate of
[6%] 10% per annum shall commence to run against the total
transmittal of salary deductions for the period on the first day
after such fifteenth day.

(11) The expenses of administration of the retirement system
shall be paid by the State of New Jersey. Each employer shall
reimburse the State for a proportionate share of the amount paid
by the State for administrative expense. This proportion shall be
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computed as the number of members under the jurisdiction of
such employer bears to the total number of members in -the
system. The pro rata share of the cost of administrative expense
shall be included with the certification by the retirement system
of the employer's contribution to the system.

(12) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the retirement
system shall not be liable for the payment of any pension or other
benefits on account of the employees or beneficiaries of any
employer participating in the retirement system, for which
reserves have not been previously created from funds,
contributed by such employer or its employees for such benefits.

(13) ([Notwithstanding any other provision of this act, the
Legislature shall annually appropriate and the State Treasurer
shall pay into the contingent reserve fund of the retirement
system an amount calculated as an increase in the normal
contribution which will provide for the additional liability
required to fund the benefits provided by this amendatory and
supplementary act. Any saving realized by the retirement system
as a result of any future increase in “"regular interest” as
determined annually by the State Treasurer shall be applied by
the actuary towards meeting the cost of this additional liability.]

. 1[(Deleted by amendment, P.L. . c. )]

The Legislature shall annually appropriate and the State

" Treasurer shall pay into the pension accumulation fund of the

retirement system an amount equal to 1.8% of the compensation

of the members of the system upon which the normal contribution °

rate is based to fund the benefits provided by section 16 of
P.L.1964, c.241, (C.43:16A-11.1), as amended by P.L.1979, ¢.109.!
(cf: P.L.1979, c.109, s.1) '

6. Section 21.of P.L.1971, c.175 (C.43:16A-15.4) is amended to
read as follows:

21. The accrued liability contribution of any employer
adopting the retirement system after July 1. [1971] 1987 for the
purpose of providing prior service credit, shall be payable by the
employer to the pension accumulation fund over [a] the period [of
not less than 25 years] selected by the employer, provided that

the period may not exceed 40 years following the initial valuation

of such liability by the actuary of the retirement system.
(cf: P.L.1971, c.175, s.21)



="

11

13

15

17

19

21

23

29

31

33

35

37

39

$2602 [2R]
16

7. (New section) Pension adjustment benefits for members and
beneficiaries of the Police and Firemen's Retirement System of
New Jersey as provided by P.L.1969, c.169 (C.43:3B-1 et seq.)
shall be paid by the retirement system and shall be funded as
employer obligations in a similar manner to that provided for the
funding of employer obligations for the retirement benefits
provided by the retirement system. ![The value of anticipated
future adjustments for active members as of and after July 1,

. 1987 shall be funded as a percentage of prospective total

compensation on the assumption that the funding level for the
cost of these adjustments will be phased in over a period not to
exceed 40 years.]l

8. (New section) Notwithstanding the provisions of the
"Pension Adjustment Act,” P.L.1969, c.169 (C.43:B-1 et seq.),
pension adjustment benefits provided for under the act for
members and beneficiaries of the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System of New Jersey shall be paid by the retirement
system and shall be funded as employer obligations in the manner
prescribed for the funding of pension adjustment benefits by the
retirement system by this 1988 amendatory and supplementary
act, P.L. .c. (C. ).

19, (New section) The Director of the Division of Pensions

shall review the positions of all members of the retirement

system on the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act and shall recommend to the board of trustees

whether or not a position shall continue to be covered under the

retirement system based upon the definitions of "policeman” and

"fireman” in this act. The board shall determine which positions

shall continue to be covered under the retirement system. A

member whose position was covered prior to the effective date of

this 1988 amendatory and supplementary act shall continue to be

eligible for membership in the retirement system while in the

same position. Any person appointed after the effective date of

this 1988 amendatory and supplementary act to a position which

is not covered by the retirement svstem is not eligible for

membership.
Upon the recommendation of the Director of the Division of

Pensions, the board of trustees shall determine if a position of a

law enforcement unit or firefighting unit or the State in
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existence on the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act but not covered by the retirement system or

established after the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act is covered by the retirement system.

If the board determines that a position is covered by the

retirement system, any person in the position is eligible to

become a member of the retirement system. [f the person is a

member of another State-administered or county or municipal

retirement system, the person may transfer membership in the

other retirement system to the Police and Firemen's Retirement

System in accordance with the provisions of P.L.1973, ‘c.156
(C.43:16A-62 et seq.). Any time period under P.L.1973, c.156
calculated from the effective date of that act shall be calculated

from the effective date of this 1988 amendatory and

supplementary act for the purposes of this act.

A person employed in a position on or after the effective date

of a determination by the board of trustees that the position is

covered by the retirement system is required to enroll in the

retirement system as a condition of employment, provided the

person is otherwise eligible for membership by meeting the

appointment, age and health requirements prescribed for all

members. A person empioyed in a position covered by the

retirement syétem and eligible for membership in the retirement

system is  ineligible for membership in any other

State-administered or county or municipal retirement system. !
210. On or before the 90th day after enactment of this 1988
amendatory and supplementary act, the Director of the Division

of Pensions shall report in writing to the Governor. the Senate

Revenue, Finance and Appropriations Committee, the Senate

State Government, Federal and Interstate Relations and Veterans

Affairs Committee, the Assembly Appropriations Committee, and

the Assembly State Government Committee, or their successors,

concerning the titles that will and will not continue to be covered

by the retirement system and the number of people that will be

affected and are projected to be affected thereby as a result of

this act. The director shall provide reports to the Governor and

the committees annually thereafter which shall include

information concerning, but not limited to, the titles covered by

the retirement system, any changes in title coverage, the number
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.of members affected by any changes, and the actuarial status of

the retirement system.2

1[9.] 2{10.1) 11.2 Section 3 lof P.L.1979, ¢.109 (C.43:16A-15.5)
and section 3! of P.L.1982, c.198 (C.43:16A-11.1a) lfis] arel
repealed. : :

1010.] 2{11.1] 12.2 This act shall take effect immediately,
except that the amendment to subsection (2) of section 15 of
P.L.1944, c.255 (C.43:16A-15) in section 5 of this amendatory and
supplementary act shall take effect on the first day of the

calendar quarter following the date of enactment by at least two
months.

PENSIONS AND RETIREMENT
Police Officers

Increases special retirement allowance in PFRS; restricts PFRS
membership; assumes funding of pension adjustments; amends
other provisions of PFRS statute.
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ASSEMBLYMAN ROBERT J. MARTIN (Chairman): We will
start with Assemblyman Cimino's bill; then Senator Russo's
bill. There will not be a vote at this hearing. It is
anticipated that we will vote to release or not to release at
our next Committee meeting, which is scheduled for February
27. I believe that 1is the correct date. It's at the end of
this month.

We would like to take as much testimony as we can. In
order to abbreviate things-— I think most of the people here
are generally familiar with the bill, and it will be further
fleshed out, I am sure, through the comments, both for and
against 1it, by the wvarious set of persons who will be
testifying today. A

Let us see 1if Assemblyman Cimino has any comments
preliminarily which he wishes to make, before we start to take
testimony from others in the room.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Let me
say that I appreciate your having taken the time to post this
bill for a public hearing. As I understand it, at some future
Committee meeting we will have the opportunity to vote on
S-2602 and A-3421.

Let me note for the record, however, that, in fact,
Mr. Pascrell is the prime sponsor and I am the co-prime sponsor
of the legislation. I don't know whether Assemblyman Pascrell
has come into the room yet, but I am sure he will.

What I would really like to do, Mr. Chairman, 1is allow
those who have come here to testify, both for and against the
legislation, to really utilize the time most appropriately and,
in turn, I think my perspective, as one of the prime sponsors
of the legislation-- I will hold my comments until everyone
else has had the opportunity to testify. So, if we could, sir,
by all means, I would like to start hearing the testimony.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Okay. I saw Steve DeMicco here
earlier. Is he still here? (no response) Steve 1is the.



representative from Senator Russo who has, as I noted before,
the companion legislation which was passed in the Senate at the
end of last year. ’

I will ask that people try to keep their comments to
no longer than five minutes, so that we can take as much
testimony as we can. I will begin with the list I have, which
was prepared by staff, and go down that list. I know there are
other people who may also wish to speak. 1Is Mr. Hoffman here?
(no response) Is Mr. Forrester here, or his representative?
(no response) I haven't seen him. -

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: He 1s coming
right over. I would rather wait until he arrives.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Okay. Mr. Ginesi, do you wish to
speak on this bill? I think I saw him.

FRANK G I NES I: (speaking from audience) I want
Steve DeMicco. Is he in the room?

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: He's not here.

MR. GINESI: Will you give me a few minutes, please?

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Yes, okay.

MR. GINESI: I didn't think you would get started this
early. _

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, you know, we are trying to
give everyone an opportunity. I was going to have someone who
would be speaking in favor of the bill begin, but we can alter
our method. We'll take a brief minute here.

‘ I can tell you that my concerns are going to focus
principally today on the costs of this bill and how it is going
to be financed. I think it is important that we have the
Division of Pensions from the Department of the Treasury speak
on this bill, if not first, at least up-front, so we can have
some reaction to that by both the representatives of the
various pension groups, as well as the League of Municipalities
and others. )




ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: In the interim, maybe we could
have an explanation of this printout we got. - Or, maybe we
should do that-- (brief discussion among members of Committee)
STEPHEN DeMICCO: Good morning, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Good morning, Mr. DeMicco.

MR. DeMICCO: Mr. Chairman, thank you. I am sorry
about the delay in my getting here. On behalf of Senator
Russo, I would like to thank you for giving us the opportunity
to present his bill and the corresponding Assembly bill this
morning. i
This 1is the third legislative forum on this bill.
Concerns were expressed and resolved to the satisfaction of the
Senate in three different forums. The Senate State Government
Committee repérted this bill with four out of five votes. The
Revenue, Finance and Appropriations Committee, after studying
the issues attendant to this legislation, reported it with no
dissenting votes. And the Senate, as you know, on October 17
of last year, voted this bill by a vote of 30 to 4.

This bill revolves around a number of very complex
issues. They are prone to confusion or misrepresentation and,
therefore, we think it 1is good and very healthy that this
Committee is being deliberate about this legislation.

When talking in terms of a bill as complex as this
one, we think it is best to talk in terms of goals. When late
in 1987 the Legislature enacted a three-bill package to reform
the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund, it established three
very responsible criteria on which Senator Russo has relied in
this bill. First, it recognized, as most certainly we should,
that the cost of 1living adjustment is a 1liability of the
pension system, and should, therefore, be actuarily funded like
all other system liabilities.

Second, those three bills we passed, which were léter
signed into law, recognized that every time new obligations are



added to a pension system in the form of increased benefits or
unanticipated salary adjustments, the actuarial reliability of
the established financing system is put out of date, and must
be reevaluated. Thus, the refinancing that was embodied in
1987's TPAF legislation.

Third, the TPAF bills funded a new health benefits
"package for retirees only after a financing .system was
established by the State Treasurer, which was based on sound
actuarial analysis and conservative fiscal assumptions.

To these three fundamental criteria, Senator Russo has
added two more: First, if you are going to reform a public
pension system to bring the funding of 1its 1liabilities
up-to-date, you should embrace the benefits package for its
members which has an established public policy rationale. And
second, you should be entirely satisfied that the benefits
package you establish 1is available only to those public
employees for whom the pension system was established in the
first place. \

That is why Senator Russo has relied on enhancing only
the existing special retirement benefit, instead of the old
20-and-out proposal which, as you know, last session was a new
benefit. That is why he has insisted upon creating a statutory
definition of policemen and firemen that is specific, that is
unambiguous, and that will be administered by the people most
concerned about protecting the PFRS assets -- the system's
trustees.

Now, S-2602, and its corresponding legislation
sponsored by Assemblymen Pascrell and Cimino, do a number of
things, but they have five major provisions. Those are
outlined on the sheet of paper on the inside left pocket of
your package. ‘

Senate Bill 2602: Increases special retirement
allowance by 5%; after 25 years, from the current 60% to 65% of
final compensation, and after 30 years, from 65% to 70% of
final compensation. '




It pre-funds the cost of living adjustmeﬁts and treats
them as employer obligations for retirement benefits provided
by the retirement system.

It refinances accrued 1liability of the retirement
system over a period not to exceed 40 years.

It retains the State's obligation to fund its portion
of the special retirement benefit established in 1979.

And, for the first time, it establishes a definition
of policemen and firemen which would restrict future entry into
PFRS to far fewer people; approximately a 20% reduction based
on the current membership.

You will see at the back of the right side of your
packet, a letter behind the chart, on a letterhead from Mercer
Meidinger Hansen, the actuaries for the State Division of
Pensions for this system, which outlines the attrition in
PFRS's membership that would be caused by this new definition
of policemen and firemen. You can see, as you go down year by
year, there will be a large number of current members who will
be shifted to the Public Employees Retirement System and,
therefore, will decrease the liability of PFRS as a result of
this definition. ' . )

Based on the language in this bill, the Division of
Pensions and the State Treasurer have examined the system's
liabilities, studied the system's assets and earnings
experience, projected the cost of the COLA, and settled on a
conservative financing period of 30 years. The results of
their analysis is contained in the right side of your folders.
That is the chart that you see in front, in the right side of
your folders, which is entitled, - "State of New Jerse{ Police
and Firemen's Retirement System."

What the analysis shows —-— looking for a moment at the
front page -- 1is that system-wide we will save $19 million in
the first of 30 years, and more money each year thereafter
through the 16th. Those savings are shown in the far right



column. Savings continue to accrue in the remaining 14. years,
such that over the 30-year financing period, the State, county,
and local PFRS employers will save over $754 million.

We then asked the Division to prepare an analysis to
show the effects of this bill on every State, local, and county

employer.r That analysis is attached to the front page of your
' chart. What I have done for your purposes is prepare that
chart for each Committee member here, so that you can see
highlighted towns in your districts that are members of PFRS
and the savings they will achieve as a result of this bill.

‘ What the analysis shows is that of 389 individual PFRS
employers, 328 will save money in the first year that this bill
is in effect. Examples of those towns include: Chatham
Borough, which will save nearly $30,000 in the first year;
. Bloomfield, which will save nearly $140,000 in the first year;
Roxbury, which will save over $5000; Hamilton Township, nearly
$35,000; and Jersey City, nearly $2 million.

These savings are accruing for several reasons:
First, because we are pre—funding the COLA, and we are
relieving those employers with many retirees now of the
year-to-year impact of funding the COLA on an ad hoc basis, as
they now do. Seccondly, because the Treasurer has studied the
earnings experience of PFRS and its investment portfolio, and
is confidently able to project an earnings rate of 7%. And
last, we are saving money because we, are taking out a new
mortgage on the PFRS. We are consolidating its debt. 1In doing
so, we are establishing a conservative amortization périod of
30 years, based on a level percent of salary compensation.

All of these reforms are important; all of them
provide long-term relief to all municipalities and immediate
relief to most. But what 1s most significant about this bill,
what will have the most profound fiscal impact and will provide
the best legislative precedent for public pension policy, is
the new definition of policemen and firemen. This section of




the bill 1is not ambiguous. It establishes clear, verbal
criteria for PFRS membership. It empowers the trustees to
establish mental and physical fitness requirements, and it
requires the trustees to examine every PFRS title for
eligibility. Based purely on this definition, the actuaries
for PFRS estimated overall membership reduction of 20% —-- over
6000 employees. Their analysis is also in your folders, and it
shows how many employees each year will be directed to
membership instead 1in the PERS. This provision not only
reserves PFRS benefits for those who deserve them, but it also
reduces the system's liabilities more and. more, as fewer and
fewer members are added.

Finally, there is'the.issue of the enhanced special
retirement benefit established in this bill. When in 1979 the
Legislature enacted Chapter 109, it did so to meet the public
policy objective of encouraging retirement for those public
safety employees who had served their communities for over 25
years. The idea was to facilitate the movement of younger and
experienced police officers and fire fighters to the front
iines. The benefit was never predicated on any assumption that.
pensions should be part of an employee compensation package.
It relied, instead, on a sound policy judgment that 25 years of
service was a reliable point of transition for employers, and a
good point of departure for employees.

Senator Russo agreed with those judgments then, and he
agrees with them now: By replacing the old 20-and-out benefit
with this one, he can point to .10 years of established
retirement experience to reliably project future trends. He
also ‘supports this lower pension enhancement, because it will
cost less than half of what the 20-and-out benefit would have
cost. _

What our experience tells us is that in 1978, before
we enacted this special retirement benefit, there were 424
retirements from PFRS. In 1987, there were 692. The number of



active PFRS members aged 29 or younger increased from 4570 in
1978 to 6543 in 1987. The number aged 30 to 44 went from
13,250 in 1978 to 16,805 in 1987. In fact, over the 1l0-year
period I am talking about, the active PFRS membership has
increased 17.8%, but the number of retirees has increased by
63.2%. ‘ | ‘

Regardless of some arguments that no benefit should be
changed, Senator Russo believes that some benefit enhancement
is warranted, and he was willing to accept this modest change
only after it could be shown that the entire reform proposed in
this bill would accrue net savings now and over the entire
period of 30 years:

I hope I have been able to capsulize this data, some
of which you see before you. I am prepared, along with the
Division of Pensions, to try to answer any other questions you

may have.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Philosophically -- we'll start
with that -- when we talk about the enhancement, you see it as
a definite benefit; at least Senator Russo does. Younger

police officers and fire fighters are in the system than were
in the system previously. That 1s part of your testimony,; 1is
it not, that one thing that has happened over the last 10 years
is that older officers will retire, as opposéd to staying 1in?
This 1s an. enhancement for them to leave the system, and as
such, that is good for the State of New Jersey. Is that?

'~ MR. DeMICCO: _Yes, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: The numbers you came up with --
your savings —-- are based upon certain assumptions. I think we
will save most of these questionsAfor the Division of Pensions,
but your reliance 1s principally upon their studies, or your
own independent studies? '

MR. DeMICCO: The Division's studies, Mr. Chairman.
The analysis you have in front of you was preparai.by Mercer




Meidinger Hansen, which are the actuaries for the PFRS,
retained by the Division. What you see 1is exactly what you
said. It is an analysis based on certain assumptions, some of
which are statutory, some of which were based on the
Treasurer's best guess about what our assumed interest rates
should be, what salary adjustments are going to be over this
30-year period, etc.

Based on a number of runs that they did until they
really felt comfortable that they had the best system, they
came up with this analysis. Having seen the front page of that
analysis, which is a system-wide analysis, we knew, based on
the 20-and-out experience last session, that members on every
committee, and as a whole in both houses, were not going'to be
satisfied that one page of analysis was going to guarantee
them, or make them feel sanguine that they were going to have
the savings that we were claiming.

So, we asked the Division to take it a step further
and show us what actual billings would be fo; towns under this
bill, based on the assumptions yoﬁ see on the front‘page of .
that analysis. So what you have attached to that front page,
is what the change would be in the actual billings for the 1987
valuation year -- billings to be made in 1989. Those are the
billings that would actually be issued to each town member of
PFRS. So they are totally dependable as far as they have been
represented to sénator Russo and myself. They represent what
those billings would actually be.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Most "of the reductions 1in the
pensidn system would occur by employees of the State, as
opposed to municipalities. Wouldn't you agree with that?

MR. DeMICCO: I think that 1is true more with the
Public Employees Retirement System, and not with PFRS. ’

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, most of the municipalities
that would hire people into the system, I would think, would
quality under your definition as police or fire fighters. They



would be eligible for PFRS, so the reduction, I would think,
would be in some certain 1lines that are principally State
employees. '

MR. DeMICCO: Oh, I'm sorry. I misunderstood your
question. Yes, yes. Where the reduction in membership will
be? Primarily State employees is probably right, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN:. Questions? Do you want to say
something, Frank? ‘

MR. GINESI: That's all right.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I will open for questions to Mr.
DeMicco. Bill?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Mr. DeMicco, I thought your
testimony was very eloquent and very well-presented. I have a
couple of specific questions. Because I might not be here
later —— I have to go to another committee meeting -- I will
ask them of you, whereas I might have asked them of the
Division of Pensions.

First of all, in this calculation of savings—-—

MR. DeMICCO: Yes? '

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: --you have current costs and
you have proposed costs.

MR. DeMICCO: 'That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: What is the interest rate, or
the earnings income rate on which the current costs are based?

MR. DeMICCO: Six and three-quarters.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: What 1is the interest, or the
earnings rate on the projected costs?

' MR. DeMICCO: Seven.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Seven?

MR. DeMICCO: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: A difference of one-quarter of

H
o\

MR. DeMICCO: That is correct.
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: What 1s the difference in
investment policy, or any other kind of change which would

o\°

indicate that there is a change from 6-3/4% to 7%,
notwithstanding passage of this bill?

MR. DeMICCO: Assemblyman, if I understand your
question correctly, you are trying to get at why 7% 1is a
dependable number.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: No.

MR. DeMICCO: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Why are the projections, when
we are comparing apples with apples—-- Why are the projections
of current costs based on 6-3/4%, and the projections of future
costs based on 7%? '

MR. DeMICCO: Because the Treasurer -- and I think
Doug Forrester can probably answer this better than I-- As I
understand it, what the Treasurer does on a routine basis, 1is
take a look at earning experience for each of the retirement
systems that the State administers. And based on-- They did
that when we adju%ted the TPAF legislation which I referred to
before, in 1987. What they look at is earning expetience over
a period of time to base any ‘adjustments in projected interest
rate on some empirical data. I can tell you, looking at the
PFRS, for instance, that the last year for which I have data
shows an effective rate of return on the portfolio at 8.39%;
the year before that, 8.7%; the year before that -- 1983 -
8-1/4%; 1982, 8.8%; and so on.

- Based on the earnings experiencé of the portfolio, I
think the Treasurer was confidently willing to sign off on the
7%. That is not a statutory number.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER:  Mr. DeMicco, you make good
points. I am not arguing the point on what should be done.

MR. DeMICCO: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I am making the point that the
comparison -- and I gquess this should be directed to the

-
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Division of Pensions —-- that really -— and I don't mean to get
them into this discussion now, because they are not up here--
But, it would seem to me——

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You're next, Mr. Forrester.
We'll keep you in the batting cage.
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: -—that 1n order to compare

apples with apples, I would like to see the current costs based
on 7%, rather than 6-3/4%, because then it would be relevant to
the proposed costs, which are based on 7%. So, I am making
that as a statement, and perhaps as an observation.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We will ask that question of Mr.
Forrester. ’

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Mr. Forrester, because I might
not be here when he testifies.

I have another-- Again, maybe the Division can answer
these when their turn comes up. Talking just municipalities-—-
We have 567 municipalities in this State. How many of those
municipalities are under the police force and-- '

MR. DeMICCO: Just under 400, as I understand it.

ASSEMBLYMAN. SCHLUTER: Just under 4007?

MR. DeMICCO: Are members of the PFRS.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: The PFRS.

MR. DeMICCO: Just under -400.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Now, does that mean that 1if,
like, Atlantic City has police and Atlantic City has fire, that
is counted as two, or is it counted as one? -

MR. DeMICCO: There are two separate accounts for
billing purposes, as I understand it, but it is one employer ——
one member. : |

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: One employer, and there are
400, so a majority of the municipalities—-

MR. DeMICCO: Are members.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: -—are members of the PFRS, when
you take a municipality as a unit, regardless of whether it has
a separate police system or a separate fire system?
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MR. DeMICCO: Yes, that is corréct.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Okay. I heard the number 77%
of law enforcement officials, or public safety personnel being
under PFRS.

MR. DeMICCO: I cannot verify that. I don't know
whether. that is true or not.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: All right. What I would 1like
to understand 1is, what percentage-— We have a percentage of
municipalities, 400 out of 567.

' MR. DeMICCO: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: How many people does that
translate into?

MR. DeMICCO: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: And also, my understanding is
that some of these towns and some of these systems, because
they were brought on board 1later, their members are also
eligible for Social Security. Is that correct?

MR. DeMICCO: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Some of these municipalities'
members are eligible, and some aie not; some were in way back
in 1944-- '

MR. DeMICCO: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: -—and they were not in the
integration. ’

" MR. DeMICCO: As I understand it, that 1s correct. I
think Doug- can clarify that.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I think it would be helpful if
we had--

MR. DeMICCO: You want to Kknow how many, what the
split is on the integration?

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN  SCHLUTER: -—an  asterisk by those
municipalities which are in under the- Social Security, and
those which are not.

MR. DeMICCO: Okay.
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v ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Those were my questions. Thank
you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Joining us is Assemblyman Charles.

Does anyone else have questions for Mr. DeMicco and
Mr. Ginesi before we hear from the Division of Pensions? (no
response) Thank you, Steve. ,

MR. GINESI: The only thing, Mr. Chairman, that I
‘would like to say is, thank you for taking the time to have our
bill up. We studied this bill for about four years. We worked
on it. It was a commitment by the PBA when we talked to the
Governor that we would definitely try not to have any cost
factor on any municipality. This 1is what we have done with
this bill. We hired Martin and Seigel (phonetic spelling).
Martin and Seigel 1is from New York City. They represent about
27 states. They are not 3just a few people. They have a
tremendously big office in New York. You can look it up any
time. They represent 27 states. They did the actuary figures
for us on this, until we got to the point where we are now
today with this bill. )

Now, a 1little Proof of that -- proof that something
must be right -- 1s, Senator McNamara used this formula on the
teachers' hospitalization that you passed through the Senate
and the Assembly, and the Governor signed it. It was in the
headlines of The Star-Ledger that you received $118 million

back. They gave a check to the State, plus I think it was $200
and some odd million in savings, which we have been trying to
tell the State for a long time, until they finally did it. It
took a Senator to prove the point that we have been trying to
prove for four years. We worked it out, and it is 100%. I'm
sure it took an awful lot to conwvince John Russo, and to show
John Russo -—- Senator Russo -- these figures we have from
Martin and Seigel. They come out 100%, believe me. It -took
four solid years of work on this. It is a long time coming.
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We are not asking for much; it's 5%. It eliminates
the 20—-and-out bill that some of the officers wanted. They are
‘happy with this. It will do the job. Some of the complaints
from the Assembly and the Senate were that they didn't want any
park police, they didn't want this, and they didn't want that.
So, we eliminated all of those positions.

Another - thing, Mr. Schluter, some of our people,
before we introduced the (indiscernible), were eligible to go
up to 77%. Right now, they are only eligible to get 65%. We
took off 12%, and we gave them that special pension, and they
accepted it. All we are doing is asking for five more. We are
still going to be short 7% from what we could have gotten 1if we
had stayed.

So, we are not relinquishing-- The State 1s not
giving us that much. It will be helpful to the men. They put
their 1lives up every day. Somehow or other, -they need
something 1like this to inspire more men and better men to come
on the job. We need it very badly. The firemen, also. There
is no question in my mind. We worked hard on this bill, and it
took four years. I want to keep my éromise to the Governor
‘that there will be no cost factor to anybody on this bill. We
proved it beyond a shadow of a doubt.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We are going to look at that real
close. Thank you very much.

I would 1like to have Mr. Forrester from Pensions, and
then we will hear from Mr. Dressel and Mr. Neely, I guess, so
we can sort of keep things in sync. Good morning, Doug.
DOUGLAS R. FORRESTER: Good morning, Mr.
Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Invasion of the body snatchers.
Pickpockets beware. (referring to crowded room)

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE: Check for guns.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Go ahead.
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MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, thank you for the
opportunity to talk with you. I notice that Mr. Hoffman's name
is on the list as well. Would it be helpful to have him join

us now? ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Sure. Mr. Hoffman? (Mr. Hoffman"
complies) )

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman and members of the
Committee: We appreciaée the opportunity to address you

regarding this bill. I think it would be helpful if I were to
emphasize some aspects of the bill which are especially
important from my perspective. Mr. DeMicco -- I think, as
Assemblyman Schluter indicated -- did a very fine job in giving
a sketch of the purposes of the bill. v

There are two which are especially important, I think,
from a public policy point of view. First is the funding of
the COLA. The actuarial funding of the COLA is a ﬁajor goal of
mine to really apply to all of the systems at the appropriate
time. It is something which should have been done at the
inception of the COLA, which was back 21 years ago. It should
have been done at that time because when a benefit 1is put into
place, it is important that the actuarial funding principles be
applied, so we can make sure that we are keeping our promises.

I have a big problem with discussions about benefit
enhancements which do not include discussions about funding
mechanisms. I have seen instances in which both employers and
employees have played that game. I am not interested in doing
that and, consequently, I am very concerned that we move as
quickly as possible to provide an adequate funding base for the
cost of living adjustment.

We have to remember that the cost of living adjustment
is something which 1is made on an annual basis, but the way the
calculations are made, it really has a retroactive
applicability. In other words, if for some reason you decided
today, with your colleagues 1in the Legislature as you are
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considering the budget, that you cannot afford to pay the cost
of living adjustment, it would cut many retiree pension checks
in half. It is not just a little shaving between last year and

this year. It really has to do with the value of their
pensions all the way back to the year of retirement.

An exposure here 1is very significant -- a financial
exposure —-— but even more than that, I think it is an exposure

with respect to the security and confidence that our public
.employees have 1in retirement. New Jersey has done well -—-
particularly well with respect to other states in terms of
handling 1its pension matters. But the biggest flaw in the
system 1is the lack of funding for the cost of 1living
adjustment. This bill provides a mechanism to fund that
liability which has grown to such a large amount at this point
in time.

As I mentioned, if it had been done 21 years ago when
it was put into place, it would have been relatively eaéy to
accommodate. Because 1t 1is a billion dollar plus liability at
this point in time, adding it to the pension system requires,
necessarily, some financing adjustments within the system.
Otherwise, 1t would not be affordable, and I would not be able
to persuade you, under any circumstances, to fund the COLA. It
would break the banks of the municipalities. So, the funding
tools which are used here, Qre tools primarily employed to fund
the cost of living adjustment.

The second important issue has to do with the
definition of eligible members of the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System. One of the boogeymen that I have dealt with
since I became Pension Director is this issue of eligibility,
of who is entitled to be a member of the Police and Firemen's
Retirement System. Quite regularly, I have trooped in here and
have addressed you and your colleagues on the various
committees about bills which would include a few indiéiduals;
individuals who have been quite persuasive in describing the
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hazardous nature of their public service. Although I might
agree that their public service is hazardous to some degree, I
very often disagree that they should be in the PFRS. We have
to keep the primary teasons for the PFRS in mind when we deal
with this issue of eligibility. The primary reason that the
PFRS system exists with its enhanced benefits, is not to reward
people for hazardous duty. It 1s not a system which is meant
to say, "We will give you a few extra dollars if you will stick
your neck out while bullets are flying around." That is not
the reason why we give better benefits.

The reason why we give better benefits is because the
nature of the duties themselves requires a level of physical
attributes which 1s found, statistically speaking, among
younger members, and consequently we want to 1induce this
turnover within the system. That is why we give better
benefits. Whenever someone trys to argue along the lines that

hazardous duty 1is the reason for better benefits, I try to
» correct them, not to suggest that hazardous duty 1is not
involved in these jobs, but rather to say, "Let's keep the
perspective on target with respect to what this pension system
is all about."

I will frankly say, although it 1s kind of a
parenthetical commént, that the erocsion of the Police and
Firemen's Retirement System because of these problems over
mandatory retirement and mandatory hiring thresholds 1is a
problem for the future of the system. If, indeed, we cannot
- keep the system structured so that younger members get run
through the system and. are able to retire with a decent
retirement at an earlier age, there 1is 1little argument to
distinguish between PERS employees and PFRS employees. I say
‘that to underscore the point that the benefits here are not
meant to be outrageous giveaways, but rather compensation to
facilitate retirement at a younger age, in order to protect the
public. That is the only legitimate public policy goal that I
can be involved with.
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This bill, for the first time, cleans up the problems
associated with eligibility that gets confused when these
little bills come through. Right now, we can put people in the
PFRS system only by title, which means that myself and the-
Board of Trustees of the PFRS are caught in situations often
when we realize that certain individuals really should be in
the PFRS, but are not. For example, if there are Civil Service
changes in which a title changes but the job description really
doesn't, there are situations in which we really have to move
people out of the PFRS, purely for bureaucratic reasons, and
that is unfortunate. We do not want to do that.

We have arrived at this mechanism as a result of
consultations with a large number of people, and particularly
legislators. The system that is being put into place here is
one in which there will be guidelines set forth by the
Legislature saying, "Individuals who are in PFRS have to attain
certain standards. They have to have arrest powers. They have
to be required to carry a gun," and appropriate requirements
for firemen as well. Once those are 1laid down, then the
Division of Pensions and the Trustees of the PFRS can examine
closely the job descriptions, to make sure that they fit.

Now, there are a number of titles which, over the
years, have been added to the PFRS, which I will frankly say do
not belong there. Those are individuals who are involved in
perhaps hazardous duty from time to time, but not critical
public safety roles. This bill would grandfather the bodies
which are in those titles now, but preclude any future hires
from going into those titles. That is a very, very important
principle for the pension plan -- this pension plan.

I am very pleased that the bill has embraced this;
that Senator Russo understands the importance of this, and I
would urge you to embrace it as well. It is not just a small
matter. It is something that 1is of importance for the
integrity of the system, let alone the financial gains that

come from it.
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For those two reasons alone, I believe that this bill
is especially desirable. I understand there has been concern

raised -- as I think concern should be raised any time

something is restructured -- about the financing of the PFRS,
but I would have to mention again that the reason why these
financial tools are being employed to refinance the PFRS is not
primarily to make room for the difference of the benefit to
65%, but rather to handle the cost of living adjustment.

Now, 1let me answer Assemblyman Schluter's gquestion,
because I consider it to be the wvery heart of the financial
issue. The reason why the interest assumption 1is being
increased from 6-3/4 to 7% in this financing package, is for
the simple reason that it allows it to work. Now, we can say,
"Well, gosh, that seems like kind of a back door approach to
financing," but it 1isn't when we look at the way in which
pensions are financed in New Jersey. We use a book value to
measure our assets. This book value has little to do with the
transactions that take place in the marketplace —-— the market
value of those assets. The market value of the assets for the
Police and Firemen's Retirement System is far, far Jgreater than
what is being reported on book value, and there are certain
reasons for 'that, although we are constantly reviewing the
matter to make sure that we are doing the appropriate thing
with regard to measuring the assets and driving the
contributions from them. The book wvalue is also higher than
our assumed value. We play a very sophisticated--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Game? )

MR. FORRESTER: Well, I would not want to categorize
it that way. The reason why is because, although it might
appear to be that, it gives kind of a lighthearted aspect to
pension financing, and there 1is very 1little that is
lighthearted about pensions. But let me say that—-

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, 1in your thinking on that,
maybe you can tell us why the old one was at 6-3/4% —— how it
was struck there? Was that because it worked at the time?
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MR. FORRESTER: Yes, yes. One of the principles of
why it worked at the time, was because we hadn't funded our
COLA. See, if our funding level were as it is now in the PFRS
without the COLA, we -would be able to move the interest
assumption up dramatically. The reason we have'kept it low, 1is
because we know there is an significant exposure out there that
we have never taken into account. That is the key. The key is
the unfunded COLA. We are trying to accommodate the COLA in
the PFRS, even though it really isn't there, and we are'doing
that for very good reasons. We are taking a conservativé
approach to the funding of ©pensions. If, again, our
liabilities were such that we could handle them all and have a
funded ratio as is reported now in the PFRS, we would not have
to stick with an assumed interest that is so low. Even our
book wvalue interest as it is reported is higher than that.

The general rule of thumb which is used in pension
theory is that, as long as there is no more than the 2% spread
between what you are assuming in terms of salary growth --
increasing your 1liabilities -- and what you are assuming on
your asset side-- As long as it is within 2%, you are within
conservative standards for pension funding. Even this proposal
is well within that 2% spread. So, from an industry standard,
it is still a conservatively funded pensioﬁ program.

The fact that we are able to handle the COLA within
this package is very significant. If we came to you and we
said, "Okay, we are going to fund the COLA. We are not going
to change the interest assumption. We are not going to change
any amortization period," everybody would say, "Oh gee, that's
great," until they saw the numbers. You would see the numbers,
and at one quick glance you would realize that you would never
vote for it, because the municipalities could not afford it.
We are handling, in the best way that we know how, the
budgeting of the pension liabilities, and that is what the
sheets 'in front of you reflect. It is a budget technique, and
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that 1is really all pension funding is. It 1is a technique to
make sure that the money is there when the retirees need 1it;
that we are not causing substantial dislocations in the budgets
of the employers every year; and that we have handled all of
the liabilities honestly on the books. V ’

This proposal that you have before you is the first
time that New Jersey has really done all of those things,
because it is the first time that it is recognizing the cost of
living adjustment.

Let me stop there. Perhaps it would be helpful if I
were to answer some questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Outside of the 7% assumption, are
there any other actuarial assumptions that are built into this,
if one could question?

MR. FORRESTER: Certainly. The tools which are being
employed here are tools which really go back a long way. I
know why it is that Mr. Ginesl speaks so highly of Martin and
Seigel for example. They are a very fine firm. The comments
they have made about this legislation are the same that any
given actuarial firm would have made. As a matter of fact, a
discussion took place well before Martin and Seigel got
involved in these matters with the Governor's Pension Study
Commission in '82 and '83, of which I was a part. In that
report, you can see a discussion of these tools. The financing
tools which we are using here are very common financing tools
with respect to how to handle 1liabilities. There is nothing
novel about them. There 1isn't anything particularly creative
about them, because they are so wideépread. I say that
because, although I would like to come before you and say,
"Gosh, here is a really unique product from the Division of
Pensions that solves these issues;” it isn't that remarkable.
It is something that is put together in such a way that we
believe is responsible from anyone:s standard of measurement.
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Now, I understand that the proposal 1is being attacked
by those who are opposed to the benefit. I understand the
concern about the benefit.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: But there are obviously two
issues: One 1s the philosophical position of whether the
enhancer shall be given. '

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Secondly, to get into the cost
issue, you're saying it will save at least most municipalities
a considerable amount of money -- the number was $2 million in
Jersey City—-—

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, may I--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: --as opposed to those who say it
is going to bankrupt the municipalities. I mean, we are
somewhat at odds here, as far as trying to -- you Kknow, as
non-actuarials, non-pension people -— as to where it is finally
going to come down. ’

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, let me say this: I have
never, at any time, said that overall this proposal will
require fewer public dollars to go to members of the Police and
Firemen's Retirement System. I am not saying that; "I would
never say that. Every time you increase a benefit, more
dollars go to pay for that benefit.

What I'm saying 1is, this proposal is a wise proposal
because.it solves two problems that I consider to be far more
significant than the marginal value of a benefit enhancement --—
far more important; such that if we do not solve those
problems, we will waste a considerable amount of money and we
will cause budget dislocations in the future that will be very,
very serious. I don't want us to get to a point at which we
find public employees having to compete with other interest
groups during the appropriations process, in order to get the
promises that we have made today funded tomorrow. That isn't
right. I see that coming, unless we fund the COLA. I don't
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see any way of funding the COLA without addressing these other
issues.

Now, I would also say that in all of the conversations
I have had, the issue of this financing proposal was always
used as a mechanism by individuals who object to the basic
enhancement of the benefits. That is the issue -- the
enhancement of the benefits. Ohe of the easiest ways to clear
it up is to s%y, "Okay, let's assume for a moment that you are
willing to grant the enhanced benefit. How would you fund
that?" I doubt very much if anyone would come up with a
proposal other than this one, in terms of how to fund that
benefit enhancement. I am perfectly willing to argue about
this issue of benefit enhancements, but I don't want anyone to
come and say, "Well gee, you know, the finance proposal doesn't
work," because it is exactly the financing proposal that would
be arrived at if, indeed, individuals were asked to fund the
benefit.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Questions of Committee members
for Mr. Forrester? (no response) Mr. Hoffman, did you want .to
say something?

A S S T. T REAS. ROBERT T. HOFFMAN: No.
I think Doug has covered most of the area.

I was going to speak on Mr. Schluter's question on the
relationship between the assumed interest rate and what we are
doing in our model. I think the real issue 1is, nothing is
going to change in our investment policy. So, what we are
saying here is, we can afford to stretch the system é little
more, if we are taking that COLA liability into the system. If
you turn that around and you say, well, we were a little bit
too conservative before, well, maybe that is true. We were too
conservative before because we knew that there was this big
iceberg out there. Now that we are bringing it into the
system, we can lighten the reins a little bit.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Have you seen these numbers that
Mr. DeMicco put out? They were also put out earlier.

MR. FORRESTER: They came from us, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: That's what I thought. Would you
feel confident in relying on these, at least for the payout
over the next year, as far as—--

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: --where these municipalities lie?

MR. FORRESTER: Yes. Mr. Chairman, those figures were
generated as a result of my request to the actuary to prepare
bills to be sent out to the municipalities. The fate of the
bill obviously lies with you, but if, indeed, the bill becomes
law, I am going to have to prepare new bills for the
municipalities. These bills, at that time -- now, these are
several months o0ld-- These bills were prepared. Things are
not going to change very much, if at all, from those numbers.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: So, municipalities, as you
understand it, would receive in the aggregate, how much back in
the next fiscal year?

MR. FORRESTER: Oh, I -believe we can confirm the
figure which Mr. DeMicco mentioned, which I think was something
like $19 million.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: There are a number of
municipalities, though, which do not come in on the plus side;
which do fall within the negative side? '

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, I am glad you raised.
that, because I wanted to make the point that if you look at
the value of those who come in on the negative side, it is a
very, very small percentage over what they are paying now. I
don't want ény municipality to think they are in a situation
where if the bill passes, it will have a disastrous effect on
them. It won't.

Now, the reason why that is the case is because of a
lot of work we did. One of the reasons why the Governor
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indicated his support for the bill was because we sald we could
produce a funding scenario which would not disastrously affect
any municipality.  There is not indifference here about, you
" know, we are going to sacrifice some for the sake of others.
Even in the case of the few municipalities which will pay a
little bit more, it really 1s, 1in absolute and percentage
terms, a little bit more, and there are not that many of those.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: There are quite a number, though,
like there are six in my district, which-——

MR. FORRESTER: I realize these might be relative
terms, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You Kknow, $559 1in Parsippany,
Chief, 1is probably something the township might be able to
absorb. I am a little concerned about the $10,900 figure in
West Milford. It is still $11,000, even in your figures, in a
time frame, as you well know, where municipalities are being
squeezed by taxes from a number of sources. Hopefully Maybe
with the school funding, we may be able to do something to
relieve some of the pressure. I am still not real happy about
the 1list of —-—- I don't know how many there are --
municipalities. There 1is more than a handful there which will
have some cost factors.

Do you see any way that we could -- as far as this
proposal —-— hold them harmless? '

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, at this point in time, I
do not, unless there is some separate funding source identified
to do that. The reason why I say that is not because I am
indifferent to the needs of the half dozen municipalities 1in
your district, but rather because--—

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am wusing that by way of
illustration.

MR. FORRESTER: I usually find that those are very
meaningful illustrations. I think it is important for me to
again state that the reason why I devoted so much time to
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putting this bill together, was because I believe the bill
addresses all of the major concerns that I see, save one, with
regard to the issue of PFRS. The save one is the fact that we
still have a large number of municipalities in New -Jersey that
are not in the PFRS, but are in the PERS. I won't get into
that issue now, but let me say that I do see that as an issue
on the horizon.

With respect to working out some formula to save
everyone harmless, I am apprehensive that we would end up in a
situation where we would cause further disruptions in the
pension system itself 1in order to make some contrivance to
solve a few individual problems. I am interested in a pension
system that makes sense; that can be explained as clearly as
possible; and that is relatively clean of these special kinds
of arrangements. I will frankly tell you that my
recommendation to the Governor was not to continue to have the
State pay -for the old 109 costs. The reason why 1is because
that is a problem, from a pension actuarial viewpoint. It just
doesn't make a lot of pension sense to abstract one piece of
the benefit puzzle and value that separately and pay for it;

Now, the Governor is concerned about the
municipalities, and a number of legislators -- certainly
Senator Russo -— are concerned. Their concern was that they

didn't want to go back on what they considered to be a
commitment made in 1979. I could continue to pursue that in
terms of my own reasons, but I am making that point to say that
I would really want to avoid contrivances within the pension
system in order to save certain municipalities harmless for a
brief périod of time. The reason I say a brief period of time
is, the municipalities which are going to have to ante up a
little more at this point in time, are doing that because they
don't have to pay for their COLAs now, because they are
relatively new into the system, or they are new in terms of
their police forces, and they have not really begun to really
pay the piper as far as those COLA costs.
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So, in a very real sense we can say that although they
are committing a little bit more at this point in time, they
are committing themselves to expenses that they would incur
sooner or later anyway.

I would urge you strongly not to set up some separate
little rainy-day fund to save these municipalities harmless,
because I believe that would cause more problems than it would
be worth. |

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Any other questions of these
gentlemen?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Yes. Mr. Forrester, several
questions: Is the Division of Pensions and the administration
in support of this bill?

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: What 1s the total municipal
savings, or member savings? Is that 1989 that you spoke of?

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: And that includes not -only
municipalities; that includes the county, sheriff's officers,
and those who are in the system? '

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: A couple of technical- points:
With respect to coverage, I would imagine that everybody who is
in now would be dJgrandfathered. Nobody would be removed from
coverage if this bill were to go through, whereas new entries
would only allow law -— so-called law enforcement —- police and
fire, people who are directly involved in law enforcement. Is
that correct? ' ‘

MR. FORRESTER: Yes, Assemblyman. There is the small
qualification that if an individual who is grandfathered moves
to a title that 1s moved out, he would not be grandfathered.
As long as they stay put, they are grandfathered.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: In that particular -- as a
sheriff's officer, or whatever.
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MR. FORRESTER: That's right. For example, I am
reluctant to refer to any particular title, because that is
kind of prejudging the case. If there were a title which we
could assume would not be approved once this bill passes—— If
a person is in that title today., he or she can stay there. But
if a person moves to another unapproved tiﬁle, he or she would
relinquish their rights under the PFRS. o

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Now, getting back to the COLA
and the pre-funding of COLA, which is very difficult for us
nonprofessionals to understand: Can the change in the funding
of COLA be done administratively --— the pre—funding of COLA?

MR. FORRESTER: No, it cannot, Assemblyman. The
reason why is because the laws which create the PFRS, or any
pension system, describe the liabilities of that system. The
cost of living adjustment 1s a statute which has as much force
as any other statute, but it 1is not defined as a liability of
the PFRS. This bill would do that. I do not have,
administratively, the authority to define, as part of the
liabilities of the PFRS, the cost of living adjustment for that.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: -Were you about to say
something, Mr. Hoffman?

ASSISTANT TREASURER HQFFMAN: No, I was not.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Oh. Therefore, it takes
legislation to change the funding of the COLA and the schedule
of paying the COLA, if I understand your answer.

MR. FORRESTER: Assemblyman, the issue 1s not one of
changing the schedule for the payment of the COLA, unless I am
misunderstanding you. It is just an issue of financing it.
Right now, the COLA is defined by the statute as 60% of the
CPI. There is a two-year wait after retirement, and then it is
paid retroactive to the year of retirement. We take the cost.
of living index in the year you retired, we subtract it from
the‘cbst of living index in the current year, and we pay you
60% of the difference and add that to your pension check. That
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money comes out of the general fund of the various employers in

the system.

What would happen under this bill 1is, instead of two
cﬁecks being received from a town-- Let's take Pennington.
Right now -— and I assume Pennington--—

ASSISTANT TREASURER HOFFMAN: Pennington 1s not in the
PFRS. ‘

MR. FORRESTER: They aren't in the PFRS. That 1is
another problem. : _
' ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We can find one for you.

MR. FORRESTER: If we take my town, of which I was

Mayor -- and I say that to suggest that I am not indifferent to
local needs -- that town right now gives the Division of
Pensions two checks. They give one check for the basic

benefit, and they give another check for the cost of 1living
adjustment. We then give the basic benefit check to the
Division of Investments, which goes into the pool investment
program the State has. We take the other check and we just add
it then every month to the individual retiree's amounts that
are drawn down from the investment pool.

What would happen under this bill is, one check would
go to the Division of Investments, and that would be it. We
would then draw down the whole amount from the Division of
Investments at the other end to pay the pensioners. '

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: But that, from what you have
said, because of the other statute for COLA could not be done
administratively.

MR. FORRESTER: That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Now, I am getting to the point
of the difference between 6-3/4% and 7%. Do I understand you
correctly that you are asserting that the 6-3/4% shoﬁld apply
to the current costs because of the fact that you have to do
~ your COLA payments the way ybu do them under the law and,
therefore, actuarially it is not sound to apply 7% to the
current costing?
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MR. FORRESTER: Generally, Assemblyman, I can say,
"Yes." It is a little bit more complicated than that. What we
are trying to do is make the best of a bad situation. Although
1ega11‘y~ there is no direct relationship between the
establishment of the interest assumption in the PFRS and the
existence of the COLA, from a public policy point of view we
know there is a connection there -- a very direct connection.
The obligation we have made to the employees is a very real
one, and moreover, I think there are legal rights that can be
called upon by the employees if ever there were a crisis and
those COLAs were not paid. My own opinion is that there is a
whole host of municipal and State expenditures that have to be
forgone, instead of cutting the COLA, but that is a separate
thing.

What we try to do is-- We are aware that we have the
iceberg that Mr. Hoffman referred to floating out there.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: And we haven't hit it yet. But
you anticipate that there could very easily come a time,
without the funding of the COLA, where at some point there just
wouldn't be enough money in the fund to be able to cover the
COLA for a given year. Then we would have a crisis on our
hands, because you would have to draw out of the pension 1into
unanticipated funds of the State, 1n order to cover the cost of
living.

MR. FORRESTER: Yes, that 1is' the description, Mr.
Chairman. The incline of costs would go up so precipitously
that it would be continually harder and harder to carve that
out of the budgets. We want to have a flat pay curve.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I understand. I don't mean to
prolong this, but I would like to get to a couple of points.

MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Incidentally, I forgot to ask
one question: Does the PFRS allow retirees to have employment
in other public service jobs?
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MR. FORRESTER: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Do any other retirement systems
funded by the State allow that? '

MR. FORRESTER: Yes, all of them do. Assemblyman, the
laws in retirement are: If you are receiving a pension from a
State—administered retirement system, you may take a job
covered by the pension system of another retirement system, but
not earn credit in that system, for example. -

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You can't take two pensions.

MR. FORRESTER: That is correct. You cannot earn two
pensions —-- get a pension and then go into employment and earn
another pension. What I think has caused problems with the
PFRS 1is, it 1is much easier to retire as a ‘policeman, for
example, and then find another pﬁblic job, which is
permissible, than it would be to retire as State Pension
Director and go find a job as a policeman. Okay?

Now, I am willing to state for the record that my job
is more hazardous (laughter), but nonetheless that would be
difficult to do. That is why I think your question has been—-

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Let me wunderstand, because
maybe my question was not framed correctly. As I understand
it, a retiree in PFRS, if he or she has another public job in
the State of New Jersey, can still collect their pension from
PFRS? ,

MR. FORRESTER: That is correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Now, 1if another person who is
in PERS—-

MR. FORRESTER: Yes?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: --and who works for the State
retires under normal conditions—-

MR. FORRESTER: Yes?

. ASSEMBLYMAN  SCHLUTER: --can they work for a
municipality and still collect their PERS?
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MR. FORRESTER: The key, Assemblyman, is which pension
system the job you take 1is covered by. You cannot collect a
pension from the PERS and take a job which is also covered by
the PERS. That 1is why PERS members generally are at a
disadvantage.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: They can take a job, but they
cannot collect a pension?

MR. FORRESTER: Well, no. What happens is-- Let's
say I retire as the Director of Pensions, and Mr. Neely invites
me to become Finance Director of East Brunswick. Okay?

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Pretty highly unlikely.

MR. FORRESTER: That's right, although Mr. Neely has

been very gracious. He allowed me: to sit with him at the
Chamber trip, and everything. (laughter) I think the
important thing is that I would have to give up my pension --
suspend my pension -— in order to take that Finangé Director's
job. _
ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Let me -- through the Chair, if
this is permissible -- say that it would be very helpful to us
-—— to me —-- to know in what pension systems there 1is the

ability to collect when you take another public service job, or
not to collect; in other words, PERS, PFRS, TPAF, and differént
things -- I think that kind of an analysis -- because I think
that PFRS 1is the only system where a person can take another
public job, paid by government, and still collect the--

MR. FORRESTER: That is 'not true, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Well, that is at great variance
with some of the information we have gotten. I would like to

get—— _

MR. FORRESTER: We can certainly give you the
statutory citation.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: --a matrix showing what you can

and what you cannot do, if that 1is possible.
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Now, getting back -- and I am sorry for the disjointed
question, because I missed that one question--

MR. FORRESTER: I understand.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Has the Division of Pensions
made any estimate of the savings to municipalities if there
were a change in the funding of COLA, a change in the coverage
of positions, without an increase from-60% to 65%?

MR. FORRESTER: Yes. Assemblyman, I think that
information has actually been given to the Committee. If I
recall correctly, what would happen-- If I understand your

question, you're saying that if we were to pass this bill
without the benefit enhancement--

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Right.

MR. FORRESTER: -—okay -—- how much more money would
the municipalities save? 1Is that a way of asking your question?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I presume that the financial
actuarial basis would be 7%, instead of 6-3/4%, based on. what
you said before.

MR. FORRESTER: That is correct, yes. We would take
the bill and would just 1lift out the benefit. How much more
money, in addition to the $19 million, would the munhicipalities
save? That, in the first year, if I recall correctly, would be
somewhere around $21 million -- something on the order of that
magnitude. Now remember, all other things being equal, that
would be reduced over. time. The reason why 1is because this
bill 1is flushing. out individuals who really do not belong in
the PFRS.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I said if legislation was to
also flush that out. |

MR. FORRESTER: Oh, also flush that out? Well, okay
then, that would increase a little bit over time.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Yes. So, am I correct in
assuming that —-- maybe this 1s presuming too much -- one of the
basic purposes of this bill is to be able to change the
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coverage and change the financing of COLA, and the trade-off is
to go from 60% to 653%? Is that a fair statement?

MR. FORRESTER: Assemblyman, I know a number of people
have made that statement, and I think that is a fair statement.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Excuse me. I am not sayinq
that there 1is anything wrong with that. I want to get right
down to the-—- }

MR. FORRESTER: Well, that is a political judgment
that talks about the motivations of the individuals to support
the bill. I think that 1is a perfectly legitimate. way to
interpret a number of supportive comments. '

I would say that from my point of view, I am primarily
interested in the issue of funding the COLA, of getting the
eligibility system tightened up, and I would say -- which is
very important -- if I came to you with a bill to do that -- to
do just those things — it would look almost exactly the same,
as far as financing goes, as the bill that you have before you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Doug, there is one point,
though. If we assume -- and you said earlier that one of the
assumptions was to try to have young officers pass~through the
system—-— I would have to assume. that with the enhancer at the
25-year level, it would probably encourage more to retire at
that time. I mean, this 1is an assumption, but--

MR. FORRESTER: Mr. Chairman, I know why you would
make that assumption. Actually, we looked at that issue, and I
cannot say that it would have an appreciable effect.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You don't Kknow, or you don't

think-- 7 '
' MR. FORRESTER: No, no, we looked at that, and there
are offsetting kinds of things. In other words, some‘people
may be induced to stay, you know, a little bit longer in order
to get the 65%; some people might consider, "Okay, well I don't
have to work now for the 65%. I had set that as a goal, and
now I get it five years earlier, so I can leave." Those are
offsetting things. We don't see a big impact there.
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ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: As far as your assumptions in the
overall scheme of things, is it a fact that when an officer
retires after 25 years and a new officer comes in, and his
salary is at a lower level, obviously, than a senior officer,
that really does not come into the pension aspect, although
there could be some offset in savings to the municipality on
the differential?

MR. FORRESTER:" I think you are absolutely right in
raising that as an issue. That certainly is not taken into
account in any of the figures you have before you. But vyes,
that 1is a legitimate public policy issue, because it involves
‘the amount of relative payouts that the municipalities would
have to make. I would say that you are right. If the bill--
If we were talking about 20 and out, that would be an
enormously sighificant point, to the point that there may have
been as much as a third of a reduction appropriate 1in the
overall costs, as we identified them. In other words, if you
take the $100 we identified for pension costs, you could
probably take 30% off of. that and attribute that to savings on
saléry. ) _ ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I'm sorry, Bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Thank you very much. You
clarified it by allowing me to focus on-—- -

MR. FORRESTER: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I would 1like -- if I may, with
the Committee's permission -- to at least hear from the League
of Municipalities this morning. . I think at least we will cover
the principal bases, because time is moving on and we have a -
lot of things to do. Thank you, Mr. Forrester; thank you, Mr.
Hoffman. 7

MR. FORRESTER: Bill, I.thought you said I could speak
for you.

WILLTIAM G. DRESSEIL, J R.: Doug, you have
spoken for me. I couldn't believe the testimony you gave on
our behalf. It was super.
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MR. FORRESTER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

MR. DRESSEL: Well, you've heard from the rest, now
for the best. . |

Mr. Chairman, my name is Bill Dressel. I am Assistant

Executive Director of the New Jersey State League of
Municipalities. Lou Neely, Chairman of the League's Pension
Study Committee, and Finance Director in East Brunswick, joins
‘me. Lou will give most of our formal presentation.
' You have before you the handouts. I have a formal
statement, but most of that material you have received
previously. It reviews many of our major concerns. The text
of Mr. Neely's presentation is also before you. That material
has also been given to your stenographer. . 4

We, too, are pleased, Mr. Chairman, that you arei
holding today's hearing. We believe this 1s probably one of
the most complex pieces of legislation that has come down the
pike for some time. We have to report, though, that we believe
we have deciphered this legislation. We believe we have, and
we will prove, beyond a question of a doubt, that this proposal
was based on fallacious fiscal assumptions, and in addition to
the fiscal concerns which we will point out here today, we will
also be testifying on our philosophical concerns. Basically
what we are going to do 1is go back to the intent of this
legislation.

What 1is the intent? What is the purpose? We have yet
to receive any documentation, any testimony going to the
purpose of the legislation. So we are going to be testifying
to that, as well. ‘ ' '

It was interesting to note during Mr. Forrester's
presentation that he mentioned that back in 1982, 1983, he
served on the Governor's Pension Study Commission Report. If
you take a look at that report, it embodies many of the fiscal
tools —-— as he referred to them -— in financing the benefits

embodied in this legislation .before you. But what is very
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interesting is, the report did not talk about those tools as

pension reform -- and I think we can refer to them as pension
reform -- in the same 1light as enhancements. In fact, the
report talked against enhancements. It said: "You should not
combine pension enhancements with reform." That is a
contradiction.

They kind of encapsule some of the things that Mr.
Neely is going to mention. I will defer my time to Mr. Neely.
At the end of Mr. Neely's presentation; however, I would like

the opportunity to comment further. Mr. Chairman, with your
indulgence, here is Mr. Neely. ’

L. MASON N EEL Y: Mr. Chairman, Assemblywoman, and
Assemblymen: Indeed, it 1s a pleasure to be here. Steve

DeMicco said that the issue of this bill 1s not compensation.
Doug Forrester said it is a question of compensation, of how
much you pay police officers. That 1s a paradox. Doug
Forrester referred to you funding the benefits delineated in
this bill, but 95% of the cost of this bill will be paid for by
local taxpayers. That is a paradox: You funding -- you, being
the State —— with the local taxpayers, who are paying this.

.We are told that the proposed legislation -- S-2602
and A-3421 -- 1s designed to enhance mobility in the uniform
system of police and fire; to encourage retirement. Mr.
Forrester reports -- and our studies confirm -- that it will
not encourage or significantly change retirements, and at the
same time, members of the uniform services oppose mandatory
retirement ages of 65. That is a paradox.

We are told that the enhancement of benefits is
required because of stress on the job, and the level of uniform
services, therefore, needs to have increased retirement
benefits. But  statistically, nationwide, job-wide,
classification-wide, those are not supported as the high risk
jobs. In fact, other Jjobs are much more stressful and
dangerous. And that is a paradox:
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We are told that the beginning members of the uniform
services face life-threatening situations. Statistics do not
‘support that. That is a paradox. ‘

A We are informed that many legislators support the
concept of enhanced benefits for uniform services, because it
costs nothing. And yet, we were told today that it cost $21
million the first year. Tables were provided to you by the
actuary; incidentally, paid for by 1local governments, because
all of those administrative costs are paid for by the local
taxpayer, to find out how to enhance the police benefits. Why
would we pay for their actuarial studies 1s a paradox.

We are told that Governor Kean's report on the economy
in 1988 revealed that New Jersey runs below the nation in
unemployment and, therefore, there is a job crisis. But at the
same time, this bill has said, "Let's encourage retirement so
we can dget people out of the work force, and create more

problems."” That 1is a paradox.
We are told that the State of New Jersey -—- the
Treasurer -— has done. a study on the escalating costs of

providing health benefits. We have looked at health benefit
costs all over the nation, and we see that they are
increasing. We are talking about icebergs -— as they were
described. The Pension Study Commission Report that Doug
Forrester referred to in '82 and '83, which came out in '84,
predicted the same type of iceberg with regard to health
benefit costs as we have with COLA costs, and somehow they are .
ignored. That 1s a paradox. Are we simply dealing with one
iceberg at a time, at the local taxpayers' expense?

We are told that PERS is one of the richest benefit
providing systems in the nation.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Excuse me, PERS?

MR. NEELY: PFRS, excuse me. PFRS 1is one of the
richest benefit providing systems in the nation. ' The benefits
provided to PFRS members are far superior to those offered to
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other public employees. It 1s "top drawer," but yet you are
providing enhanced benefits of approximately $150,000 per
member to a membership of 30,000, and ignoring 110,000 TPAF
members and 240,000 ©Public Employees Retirement System
members. You are giving a benefit to 10%, and ignoring 90%.
That is a paradox.

The current replacement ratio for PFRS at mid-point of
retirement is greater than 100%, meaning that when these people
retire, at mid-point of their retirement, they are going to
earn more than 100% of what they were earning when they were
actively working. And when someone from PERS retires at
mid-point- of retirement, he or she will earn between 55% and
60% of replacement ratio.- That 'is a paradox, how you can give
that -- when that is alréady out of scale, how one can give
that additional benefit.

We are told that you can leave as a State policeman or

a PFRS member, take your pension, and go to work for a
municipality. But if you are a PERS member-- They said, "Yes,
you can take your pension and go to work for the police, but
the law precludes it because you are age-qualified, and you
can't get 1in, and there are no Jjobs available for you. You
can't become a State policemari or a local policeman, so yes,
you could extend, and say-— You could take another job and
draw your pension, but the law precludes you from being there.
So, the State Police and the PRFS are the only systems where
you can draw a pension, have a check coming from the State, and
go to work for the same town or for local government.
' Webster defines "paradox" as two conflicting positions .
that may ultimately both be correct. It is possible that all
of these paradoxes could occur and that you could pass this
legislation, and we would have an unbelievable situation.

But what I want to say is, first of all, we have seen
Mr. Forrester and Mr. Hoffman stand here and say for the
Treasurer that 7% is a reasonable number. The latest report on
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earnings by the Investment Council -- this is in your packet —
shows that they did not earn 7%. When you use the word
"effective,"” all of a sudden it changes what they are earning,
because you take capital gains into it, and sales. But the
investment ratio that they are earning on those funds is not 7%
-— this year nor last year nor the year before. So, we say,
"Why do we go from 6-3/4% to 7%?" The reason was because they
wanted to cover up the mistake of the 1982 law, when they
changed from the'thrée—year base to the one-year base. They
didn't want to bill the employees who had agreed to pay for
that, and they didn’'t want to send out new bills to the towns,
because they said it wouldn't cost anything. So they
artificially changed the assumption rate.

If you really want to do something, and you want to
have a form of State aid immediately, change the assumed
interest rate on PERS from its current 6-1/2% to 7%, and you
will send out maybe $400 million to 1local governments
immediately. That 1s a gimmick, because you are -simply
deferring the costs. You are not saving one penny. And that
is- precisely what this bill does. It uses a gimmick to make it
appear that you are lowering costs today, and you are going to
pay more in the future. Mr. Forrester—-

. ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Are you saying that you cannot
support a 7% assumption rate?

MR. NEELY: To cover up enhanced benefits, I cannot.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Do you have any-— I mean, I am
really—-— There is a nub. At least on a financial side, that

o\w

.seems to be it, because 1if 7 is a good conservative
assumption, then we can proceed at least and get it maybe into
the other issue of the philosophical. But as far as the 7%——
MR. NEELY: Well, page 6——
ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We have the Division of Pensions
saying that that 1is a reasonably conservative estimate. They

seem to have actuarial studies. They seem to have a track
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record of history -- at least that is what they're saying --
that shows in the years of the '80s, it can be supported. I
think the PBA has indicated that the pension, if anything, is
overfunded at the present time.

What can you show me, Mr. Neely -—- and I'm not saying
you can't-— I would like to know where it is that you could
point that that is going to be a number that does not work.

" MR. NEELY: Well, work is where it doesn't work, but
if you turn about 10 pages back from the green document you
have, I have a photocopy of page 6 of the report that was just
issued by the State Investment Council, which reads: "The
average daily annualized rate of return--"

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: Would you let us find that first?

MR. NEELY: Sure. It looks 1like this, and has a table
in it. It is iﬁ the back, and it 1is a photocopy of a report
that was Jjust mailed out three weeks ago by the State
Treasurer's office. It 1is véry near the back of the packet,
just after the information on Las Vegas, I think it is -- just
before the Las Vegas information. Right there on your
left-hand side. Right, there it 1is. That table is an actual
photocopy of page 6. Do we all have that?

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: The Township of East Brunswick,
October 19, is the opposite page?

MR. NEELY: Yes, the opposite page.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: State participants at July
1987-- 1Is that where you would like us to direct our attention?

MR. NEELY: Yes, that is correct. You asked me, "Can
you show me--" This is an actual photocopy of their page. I
have highlighted: "“The average daily annualized rate of return
to participating State accounts and accounts of the pension
fund group was 6.88% during Fiscal Year 1988, compared with
5.97% in Fiscal Year 1987." That is the pension funds, and the
annual average rate of return. They then give you the various
months' activities on that. If you leave your interest there
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and you compound it, then the compounded rate of return in 1988
was 6.9%. That has been highlighted for you. Ahd it was 5.99%
the year before. '

Now, all I can say 1is, the State Treasurer and the
Investment Council Jjust issued that report. I am simply
reading it. It says the "pension group investment funds." If
you net out the sale, which obviously artificially inflates,
what has happened because of the divestiture of the South
African holdings, and give additional capital and you put it--
Hold that constant and just look at the investment funds. This
is what shows.

Let me tell you that if you were to pull out the
enhanced benefit piece of it, which costs $21 million, as Mr.
Forrester said -- and we will accept that -- and the $19
million that 1is there, then immediately you can say $40 million
for the towns —-—- no, not say, simply defer; you are deferring
costs —— and begin to pre-fund the COLA-- Since 1982, we -—-—
the League of Municipalities -- has said, "Pre-fund the COLA."
The law that was passed in '69 which. established this, was the
most fiscal irresponsible act. We have said, "Establish a
method of funding it," and there are three or four different
methods of funding it which we have endorsed. But don't fund
COLA, which 'is necessary, and then take the big savings, as you
can by deferring the costs, and give them away as an enhanced
benefit to already one of the top three richest benefit systems
in the nation.

It was interesting that--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Who are first and second?

MR. NEELY: I don't have that for you, but it 1is
interesting to note that we asked Mr. Forrester to do a study.
Actually, we were going to hire the firm of Foster and Higgins,
and every actuary firm that we wanted to hire has a contract
with the State somehow, and it was a conflict of interest. So
we said, "Why don't you, as long as you are billing us also,
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and you are doing all of this work for the PBA, and you are
passing those costs back to local governments, why don't you do
one study for- us and put it into our annual rates?" We didn't
get that cost. We didn't get that cooperation. But we think
there is a way of doing this.

' ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You do not dispute, or do you,
the materials. from Mercer Meidinger Hansen?

MR. NEELY: For the first year, they are correct, but
after that, as Steve DeMicco said himself, and Doug Forrester
said, after you change one pilece of benefit, the actuarial
study you've got there is useless.

Now, let me suggest to you that when the PFRS system
was first established in 1944, it was only for policemen and
firemen who were uniform. Those 20% of the titles, which they
now want to take out, are State employees who you people,
through the Legislature, have put in. You are Jjust simply
taking yours out. You are not doing anything for 1local
governments, because local governments do not have those phony
titles in the system. The State is the one that has all those
titles. The State 1s the one that reaps all of the benefit on
this.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: It is going to do something about
it—

MR. NEELY: You ought to do something about it.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: -—one way or another.

MR. NEELY: But you are the ones who put them in. Do
you believe for one moment that as soon as you pass this, some
group won't be back next yeaf saying, "Put us in that system..
Change the title. Give us a new definition"? From 1944, you
had a true system. That system, at that point, was balanced --
5% by the employer, and 5% by the employee. Today, 1t 1is
almost 20% by the employer. The reason it is so out of balance
is because every year they have come down and people-- This
Legislature has passed little pieces of benefits, saying, "It
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won't cost anything. Give them another benefit." That is why
it 1s so askew. ‘

Let me tell you: The concept of this is pre-funding
to save money. You are not pre-funding; you are just beginning
to pre-fund. You have not pre-funded one cent. All you have
done 1is refinance the accrued 1liability, and you have taken-——
The towns 1in your district that are going to pay more-—- The
reason they will be'paying more 1s because you have taken the
accrued liability from the State of New Jersey, from Newark and
Jersey City, and from a lot of those big cities that do have a
big pool of liabilities out there, and you have spread it over
the suburban communities to artificially lower it. This is an
indirect form of suburban communities helping the urban
communities with their accrued liabilities.

Now, that is a policy 1issue that has not been brought
up to you, but I -don't think that we, as municipalities, ought
to be helping spread the costs of the State, because you are
pulling all of your titles out; you are spreading your accrued
liability over this new financing gimmick; and we are paying
for that. And I've got to tell you: You cannot refinance a
car, refinance a house, refinance anything over a longer period
of time that it does not cost you more total dollars.

This Assemblyman 1s correct when he asks, "Why are you
trying to compare the current program with these new enhanced
programs and all these assumptions, because it is apples to
oranges?" If any one of you believe that you can give away a
$2.7 billion benefit and it will not cost you anything, and it
will not cost the taxpayers something, then I think you-all
need to do some serious looking at what is going on.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: -Mr. Neely., you do not have any
quarrel with the pre-funding of the COLA or with the reduction
of the titles in the system?

MR. NEELY: For almost 10 ‘years, we have supported
that. '

45



MR. DRESSEL: The definition we do.

MR. NEELY: The way the definition is as to how that
can be pblitically manipulated—-— We have a problem with that.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: What is the problem with that?

MR. NEELY: The problem is, you simply say that these
are the general criteria, and that 1is determined by Mr.
Forrester and/or the Board. Now, I have great confidence--
Doug Forrester 1is a man of integrity, and I don't think he
could be politically manipulated, but I don't Xknow what 1is
going to happen two or three years down the pike with new
pension administrators, or what pressure would come in to
accept this title and accept that title. How can you begin to
look at ongoing costs unless you put the titles in? We know
what a policeman is; we know what a fireman is.

~ ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Are you saying you would prefer
legislatively—— ,

MR. NEELY: I would like to see the title and define
it right there. We know who the people are.

But, let me step back and say this: One of the
examples that was used was beginning to pre-fund the COLA costs
for the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund. You said, "Look
how much we have saved."” The Teachers' Pension and Annuity
Fund is 100% paid for by the State. You have done that for
yourselves, and you have used a gimmick to change the assumed
interest rate, to roll those funds in, and to lower your costs
this year as a budget gimmick, so the current Governor could
say, "Well, 1look, I have lowered the costs of the Teacher's
Pension." It is going to cost more over time, any time you
pick up new 1liabilities. That does not say it 1is a bad
policy. We think it 1s a good policy to do it. But, don't let
the idea that you've lowered your costs because you have
stretched out your payments lull you into thinking that you
have lowered costs. You have taken a positive step; we adree
with that. We think you ought to fund COLA. For 10 years, the
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League has said, "Fund COLA. Give us the mechanism." We don't
think that the State—-— '

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Do you offer us any trade-off on
the funding of COLA? :

MR. NEELY: We sure do. It is written right in here.
(indicating packet of written materials) There is a letter to
Senator Russo. The reason it came out of the committee was
because he said, "We will compromise with them. We will have a
big meeting and compromise." We got zero in the compromise.
We do not want a compromise, unless we see it 1in black and
white before anything is released. ‘

We have put our position on ‘the table a number of
times as to how to fund COLA and how to deal with the problem.
It is a problem. Health benefits are a problem. They are
going through the ceiling. If you don't do something with both
of them now —-- which was told to you in '82 and '83 and '84,
when the pension report came out--~ We have said it for years;
Pensions have said it. Every newspaper article you read says
there is a problem there, and we are hiding our heads. What we
are doing 1is playing a political game of giving enhanced
benefits to what is already one of the richest systems in the
State. .

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Neely, I don't want to cut
you off. We will give you a chance for air.

MR. NEELY: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Dressel, do you want to add
something to this, at this point? We are going to be able to
go for maybe another 15 minutes or so.

MR. DRESSEL: I've got lots.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I want to give you as much of an
opportunity as possible to say what is critical.

MR. DRESSEL: Well--— '

MR. NEELY: Let me say what is critical. The critical
is that the age qualification system——

47



) ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Wait a minute. Bill, do you want
to say something?

MR. DRESSEL: Go ahead; go ahead.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am going to cut you off after a
few minutes, because I want the Committee to have a chance to
ask you some questions.

MR. DRESSEL: All right.

MR. NEELY: It was said by Mr. Ginesi that he gave up
77%. He didn't do that. That option is still available to
him. The assumptions you have used in that letter from Mercer
Meidinger Hansen says that policemen are retiring at 65. Very
few of them retire at 65. They all retire between the ages of

40-- Sixty-some percent of them retire between the ages of 40
and 50. Then they take additional jobs and we are paying them
for second careers.

_ The amendment that was made was to change—— If we
change this to qualified -- make them age-qualified -- say you
can't start drawing until age 55, we will support this thing.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I don't understand. You say we
are paying them for second careers. By policy, we have said
they can retire after 25 years of service.

MR. NEELY: That's right.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: So they go out into the private
sector, or the public sector. We are going to assume that the
position they fill is one that society wants to be filled by
someone.

MR. NEELY: That 1s correct--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I wouldn't quarrel with that.

MR. NEELY: --and because they are 45 years of age and
they are drawing a pension while they are taking another job--
That is why we are paying them to have a second career. The
system used to have age qualification, but you couldn't draw it -
until you were age 50 or age 55. '
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We think that if you really want to look at this thing
-— 1if you 1look at the demographics and all the health
reports—-— The reports say that we have an aging population and
we have a labor supply problem. To enhance additional early
retirement and to encourage people to retire now, and then have
less of a work force coming in, you are simply shifting this
problem for another problem if you give enhanced benefits.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: You know, Mr. Neely, there are
some people from municipalities who I have spoken with who, at
least in individual cases and individual departments, would be
pleased that they could get early retirement, . at least for
certain persons under certain situations.

MR. NEELY: I think if you came down to the ultimate,
and you said, "Hey, I'll give you 65% to retire," most people
out there, on their own 1issue, would say, "But we have to take
a broader view of that." Our obligation here is not to deal
with those ©particular issues where some person wants
retirement. We are setting general policy that 1is going to
affect the taxpayers of this State. And I've got to tell you
that giving away a $2.7 billion benefit, under the idea that it
is "feform," is trying to fool everybody.

If you are familiar with-- It is so neat the way the
story is told about a Judas goat. The Judas goat starts up the
little ramp, and he looks back. The other goats —-- the other
sheep -- just say, "Oh yeah, we'll follow him," because they

follow so easily. -

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Your five minutes 1s up, Mr.
Neely. )

MR. NEELY: At the top of the ramp, he turns left to
safety, and the rest of them go off to slaughter. I think you
are trying to lead us up this little path.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: May we ask some questions?

MR. NEELY: Okay, let's have questions. _

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Bill, do you have any questions
for Mr. Neely?
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ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I am. disturbed, as I said
before to the previous witness, about the information we are
getting. There seems to be an issue as to who has the ability
to work for a public employer or government and collect a
pension. I would like to make a request, through the Chair,
that we get‘ staff to give us a one-page summary of this
business about collecting a pension while working for another
level of government, so we can get that cleared up. Is that a
reasonable request? '

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: That is my concern.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: -Pensions can get that information
if we make a request for it, I guess.

MR. FORRESTER: (speaking from audience) Easily.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: Outside of that, I have no
other questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Skip? .

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: The only question I have is: Mr.
Neely, do you budget for turnover at the municipal level?

MR. NEELY: We sure do.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: You do budget for turnover?

MR. NEELY: That's right, and we fund COLA. Our COLA
costs are actuarily looked at and we fund them. '

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: But you legitimately-— If you've
got 30-year employees 1leaving and you're bringing in an
entry-level person midyear, do you budget that way?

MR. NEELY: We do more than that. We go back and send
a pre-retirement agreement to them three years before they are
going to go, to encourage them to retire and to make
enhancements so they are properly planned for. Then we begin
to allow them to participate in a deferred compensation
program, which was the essence of the recommendation of '84.
We meet with the people; they sign a pre-retirement agreementv
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three years before they go; we start the transition; we know
who is going to come; we know what the budget costs are going
to be. We take that employee and allow him to go off with a
reasonable understanding of what he is doing, why he is doing
it, and the aspects of it, which was what was planned for.

‘ We have right now-- You have choked, by holding this
bill -- these two bills -- the system. If you ‘look at the
people who are eligible for retirement, normal retirement has
not occurred because they are waiting for this enhanced
benefit. If you were to say, "No, we are not going to give
it," you would see retirements occur.

What happens if you pass this bill and you get to the
level of rétirement that is anticipated the first year of this
bill going through? You are going to have an overtime crisis
in every 1local budget that would make the $19 million 1look
small. Also, not only make the $19 million look small--

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Given the nature of politics, Mr.
Neely, if this bill 1is choked this year, because there is
always a new cast of players, people may continue to wait and
see on a number of issues like this. )

MR. NEELY: We're not going away. If you read the
editorial on the front page of the information I gave you, and
the editorial on the 1last page, there has not been one
editorial-- Not one of the newspapers in the State has
supported the concept of enhanced benefits. I don't Kknow what
you -are reading, but you've got a group of 31,000 employees who
say, "Hey, we want this benefit given to us," and you've dJgot
the newspapers around the State saying, "That's not right.
There is no such thing as a free lunch. Don't do it." You've
got 240,000-— Actually, you've  got 300,000 and some other
employees —-— the PERS and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity --
who are going to be saying, "If you give them that type of an
enrichment, we want some."” You are going to see that. And you
are going to have problems in labor negotiation with every town
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around the State because you have created an unemployment
problem; you have created an overtime problem; and you have
created a recruitment problem. You have now just, by giving
the uniform services the ability to have binding arbitration
and then causing this dump-off into retirement with this
enhanced benefit, in essence, screwed up almost every community
in the State that is a member of this. Remember, 29% of the
communities are not members, so there is roughly 71% which are.

So, you've got 71% of the communities in the State
that you have messed up by passing this bill. I think that 1is
going to happen, and it will occur through overtime budgets and
the inability to recruit. It won't happen in quite the
bargaining process. I think this 1is a complicated bill. For
someone to come in here and simply tell you it will save $19
million, it will save all this money overtime, and compare
apples to oranges, and, "We have paid for this study, so do
this wonderful thing--" I say baloney. The wonderful thing
is—

. ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Let me just-— I am trying to see
if- we have any more questions of the Committee members, because
we have gotten notice that we really can't stay much longer up
here, without—-— They have gotten ©past the Pledge of
Allegiance, (referring to the fact that the Committee members
are due at the Assembly session) so we want to move along.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Just one other question.

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES: We must get down there for the
prayer.
) ‘ ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Did the League make all of these
erudite comments to the Senate State Government Committee as
well as the Senate Appropriations Committee?

MR. NEELY: Most of them we made, yes. The Senate
State Government-—-—

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: 'What were the results?

MR. NEELY: Senator Russo came in and said, "Hey, I
need this bill," because he was going to Las Vegas to speak to
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the National PBA Association and wanted to have something to
show them out there. He said—-

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Did he say that, or are you—-—

MR. NEELY: No, that was a side comment that came.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, come on, Mr. Neely.

MR. NEELY: So anyhow, I said, "Look, we can support
the bill on the funding of COLA, if you take the benefits out
- of it." He said, "I will consider it." "Or," I said, "if the
State 1is willing to pay for it. If it is such a wonderful
bill, you pay for the benefits you want to give them, and wé
will let you do that, but don't give benefits away at our
expense."

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Mr. Chairman, may I ask, would
you say that the Senate Appropriations Committee is made up of
bipartisan membership?

MR. NEELY: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Okay. Did I understand Mr.
DeMicco correctly .that this, in fact, had unanimous support in
the Senate Appropriations Committee? |

" MR. NEELY: With the condition that they were going to
meet with us and compromise. '

MR. DRESSEL: That's right.

MR. NEELY: We had a lengthy meeting and
communications based on what we thought was going to be a
compromise, but that never occurred. We followed the Judas
goat for the first time. _

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Did you, 1in fact, witness the
debate and the vote in the Senate?

MR. NEELY: No, I did not.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Did the League? I'm sorry, did
the League of Municipalities?

MR. DRESSEL: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, we know it passed 30 to 4.
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: I wanted to ask: Was there
bipartisan support within the Senate?

MR. NEELY: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: There was. So, it really isn't
an issue of just Senator Russo perhaps just pushing an enhanced
benefit. As a matter of fact, from a governmental standpoint,
this has apparently stood the test of scrutiny in the Senate
Appropriations Committee and the Senate State Government

Committee. As a matter of fact, it has received not one
party's support, but bipartisan support, and rather
substantially, in the ©New Jersey State Senate. Is that
accurate? (

MR. NEELY: I think that 1s correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Is 1t accurate that Pensions and
the State Treasurer support this bill?

MR. NEELY: They speak for themselves, but I think
they endorse 1it, yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: They have endorsed it. Would-it
be fair to assume that the State Treasurer and Feather O'Connor
and her'office, as well as the Division of Pensions, and, in
fact, the Governor of the State of New Jersey, as well, support
this bill? ‘

MR. NEELY: That would be correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Would you suggest, then, that all
of these people who are elected officials of this State—-— .

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Skip, I've got to tell you, I
don't know if the Governor has formally endorsed the bill.

MR. NEELY: But what I've got to tell you 1is: The
State Treasurer supports this because it saves money for the
State. It does not save any money for the local governments.
And those titles that are coming out-- This is really a State
benefit bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Would you suggest, though, that
the elected officials within this State would somehow
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surreptitiously and unknowingly and unwittingly do something
directly to hurt the municipalities of this State?

MR. NEELY: I think I would take a bye on that one.
(laughter) Gross receipts have not been passed out. I think
there have been a lot of steps taken--

MR. DRESSEL: I would like to remind Mr. Cimino, too,
that the last time I checked this was a bicameral Legislature.
There are two houses and there is an executive. We would hope
that the Assembly would not rubber stamp based on what 1is
happening in the Senate. '

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: We all Kknow that neither the
Assembly nor the Senate endorse each other automatically.

MR. DRESSEL: That's absolutely correct.

MR. NEELY: That's right. They ought to stand on
their own.

MR. DRESSEL: Mr. Chairman, we both know that out of
the Gubernatorial Finance Bill the kind of rubber stamps-—-

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Are there any other questions for
these two gentlemen?

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: May I just add to this recent
conversation?

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN  SCHLUTER: I hope it ends, but I
acknowledge what Assemblyman Cimino said about these people
supporting 1it, and these people supporting it with greater
numbers than those who did not support it. But that does not
make it right. That is Why we are here. That is why we have a
two-house Legislature. We have to determine, in our own minds,
what is right. It does not make it wrong either. But support--—

ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: Mr. Schluter, I didn't really
want to get into ‘a give and take with you today on this issue,
if I may, Mr. Chairman. That was not my point—4

ASSEMBLYMAN SCHLUTER: I don't think there 1is any
dispute on it. I think it is all--
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ASSEMBLYMAN CIMINO: —-—quite frankly. I was simply
trying to point out that, in fact, there has been bipartisan
support. That is not to suggest that the Assembly, ‘in any way

—-- neither I nor any other individual -- should ever rubber
stamp anything. I don't think that I or anyone on this
Committee, including you, sir, have ever done that. I would

have a great deal of upset if, in fact, the 80 members of the
General Assembly ever rubber stamped anything out of the New
Jersey Senate. I don't think we operate that way.

MR. NEELY: I can tell you that the reason we are here
is because both the Senate and the Assembly passed the COLA
bill without a source of funding. They were told that passing
the bill, there needed to be a source of funding. We have told
them for 20 years, but it has never been dealt with because it
was an issue with no political trade-cff. All of a sudden, we
find one. Hey, give them an enhanced benefit and you have a
political trade-off, and we will fund this.

That was passed by both houses . That was a most
fiscal irresbonsible act. . '

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Mr. Neely, thank you.

MR. DRESSEL: Mr. Chairman, for the record, in your
packet, I have also presented letters from Mayor Dunn of
Elizabeth andA Barry Evans from Bloomfield. I would like to
have these made a part of the official record of today's
hearing. They could not be here, but we will be back en masse
at the next Committee hearing. We hope you do not act
favorably on this legislation. We would like the opportunity
to meet to discuss our concerns further.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: All right. We are going to have
to disband. Wait, I did want to see if-- I think Mr. Charles—-

Ma'am (speaking to Ms. Zoppi, who is in the audience),
we are going to have further testimony. It is my hope that we
can take some action on this bill at our February 27 meeting.
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EDITH MANTFREDTI Z OP P I: Well, I came down
from Cedar Grove. I put my name down as a speaker. I would
like to speak, and I won't be that long. '

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I understand, and I'm sorry.
There are a lot of people who would like to speak here, and
"that is just the nature of the way these things go. I think it
was to the benefit of this hearing that we first heard from the )
proponents, the Division of Pensions, and then, the spokesmen of
a group which represents Cedar Grove, as well as other
municipalities.

MS. ZOPPI: I am representing myself.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: I am going to ask you, ma'am--—
With all due respect, we cannot hear your testimony right now.
-We have a bill we have to consider, if we can.

MS. ZOPPI: I won't be heard at all today?

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: That is correct.

MS. ZOPPI: Well, I think that is very impolite.

ASSEMBLYMAN MARTIN: Well, you, and there are 15 other
people on the list, ma'am. I have to vote on some measures
downstairs, as does the rest of the Assembly Committee.

(HEARING CONCLUDED)
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S.2602 Major Provisions

Increases special retirement allowance by S5 percent:
- after 25 years, from 60% to 65% of final comp.
- after 30 years, from 65% to 70% of final comp.

Pre-funds COLA and treats them as employer obligations for
retirement benefits provided by the retirement
system.

Refinances accrued liability of the retirement system over
a period not to exceed 40 years.

Retains the State's obligation to fund its portion of the
special retirement benefit established in 1979.

For the first time, establishes definition of policemen
and firemen which would restrict future entry
into PFRS to far fewer people (approximately
20% reduction based on current members).
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RE: S§.2602

Dear

As you know,

NEw JERSEY SENATE

October 5,

1988

StarE House
TRENTON, NEW JERSEY 08625
609-292-5388

I am the sponsor of §.2602, a bill which

restructures the Police and Firemen's Retirement System. = The
bill has undergone study by the State Division of Pensions and -
two Senate committees, and was released favorably by both :

committees.

Because of the complexity of the bill, there has been some
misunderstanding about its provisions and fiscal impact, and the
purpose of this letter is to address those misunderstandings.

The bill contains five major provisions:

(1) It pre-funds Cost-of-Living—-Adjustments (COLA) and
treats them as employer obligations for retirement benefits
~provided by the retirement system;

(2) It refinances the accrued liability of the retire-

ment system over a period not to exceed 40 years;

(3) It retains the State's obligation to fund its portion
of the special retirement benefit established in 1979;

(4) For the first time,

it establishes a definition of

"policemen"” and "firemen" which would restrict future entry
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into PFRS to far fewer employees (approximately 20% reduction
based on current membership); .

(5) It increases the special retirement allowance by five
percent: after 25 years of service, from 60% to 65% and after 30
.years of service, from 65% to 70%.

Every one of these five provisions is the product of
discussions with representatives of the State League of
Municipalities and the Division of Pensions.

. The pre-funding of COLA is a reform long-sought by the
League. It removes the year-to-year problem for municipalities
which are forced to write two checks to the retirement system:
one to pay its normal cost obligation and the other to pay for
the COLA. By treating COLAs as employer obligations and funding
them over the life of the retirement system, we are providing
immediate relief to municipalities with larger and more mature
public safety departments and long-term savings to towns with
smaller and younger departments. All municipalities will be
establishing a reserve to fund COLA costs and will enjoy the
attendant benefits of investment earnings on those reserves.

By refinancing the accrued liability of the PFRS, we are
consolidating all of the normal cost and past-service
obligations of the retirement system and funding them at a
dependable and predictable level percent of salaried
compensation. Together with a conservative earnings assumption
of seven percent -- already endorsed by the State Treasurer --
this refinance will save hundreds of millions of dollars over
the 30-year amortization period selected by the Division of
Pensions.

In previous debates over the now-abandoned 20-and-out
retirement benefit, the League objected to the State's shifting
to municipalities its costs for the special retirement benefit
enacted in 1979. 1In response to the League's objections, I have
retained the State obligation in this bill such that the State
will continue to assume its portion of this cost over the life
of the retirement system.

Also, during the 20-and-out debate, the League justifiably
expressed concern that the liabilities of PFRS were inflated due
to membership in the system by public employees who did not
fulfill vital public safety functions. As the result of those
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concerns, I have included a new definition of "policemen" and
“firemen" which, for the first time, will restrict eligibility
for PFRS membership only .to those public employees who meet
specific training requirements and established mental and
physical fitness standards. The Division of Pensions estimates
that this new definition will decrease PFRS membership by 20%.
‘or nearly 6000 employees.

Finally, the League's most pressing concern in previous
debates over 20-and-out was with the creation of this new
retirement benefit. They argued that the first year cost of
over $47 million was prohibitive and that establishing any new
retirement benefit was without sufficient justification. On the
basis of that concern, I rejected 20-and-out in this bill, and
relied instead upon a modest five percent increase in the

" -already-established special retirement benefit.

The cost of this benefit is less than half what it would
have been under 20-and-out, and I accepted the benefit
enhancement only after the Division of Pensions and the State
Treasurer were able to demonstrate that other provisions of my
bill would not only cover the annual cost of the benefit, but
would also save the system money. They have done both, and a
copy of their fiscal analysis is enclosed.

The analysis shows that in the first year of the 30-year
amortization period, over $19 million will be saved, and that
each year thereafter for the next 15 years, -annual savings will
increase. In the 16th year, $36.8 million will be saved, and
even with the cost of the enhanced benefit included, over $754
million will be saved over 30 years.

By examining the attached tables, you can refer to the
detailed billings analysis run by the Division's actuaries. It
compares actual 1989 billings (for the 1987 valuation year) for
the 389 municipal, county and State employer members of PFRS to
billings as they would be under S.2602. Of the 389 employers,
328 would experience immediate savings. And those that would
pay slightly more in the first year would pay less than nine
percent mofe in order to bank COLA reserves now to avoid higher
COLA costs later.

The League asserts that the enhanced benefit would lead to
pressures for increased benefits from other public employees.
There is absolutely no evidence to support this claim, and, in
fact, no such situation prevailed in 1979 when the special
retirement benefit was enacted.
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The Ledgue suggests that the benefit enhancement will not
motivate PFRS members to work harder. But the purpose of the
benefit enhancement is not to supply some superior form of
compensation to active members by merit of their job duties.

When special retirement was enacted in 1979, the public
policy goal was to encourage employees in demanding and
stressful public safety jobs to retire and make room for
younger, newly trained, and physically-ready public safety
officers. Retirement experience over the last nine years
suggests that the goal has at least been partially met.

The number of retirees increased from 424 in 1978 to 692
in 1987, with a one-year surge of 962 retirements in 1982. The
number of active PFRS members aged 29-cor-younger increased from
4570 in 1978 to 6543 in 1987. And the number aged 30 to 44 went
from 13,250 in 1978 to 16,805 in 1987. 1In fact, over this ten
year period, the active PFRS membership has increased 17.8%, but
the number of retirees has increased by 63.2%. The increase in
both these rates has been steady.

We cannot say with any unequivocal assurance that the
benefit enhancement in S.2602 will accelerate the retirement
trend, but it is certainly my hope that this modest gair in
pension support will result in a 31m11arly modest increase in
. the retirement rate.

The goals embodied in S.2602 are simple. They are to
bring the financing of all PFRS liabilities up to date, to
remove the year-to-year burden of the ad-hoc COLA, to restrict
future entry into PFRS and to reserve its retirement benefits
only to those whose job duties justify them, and to enhance an
existing retirement benefit with an established record of
success.

Based on ten years of retirement experience and
considering all of the benefits embodied in S.2602, I believe
this bill is good public policy. I hope the information I have
presented will provide a clear illustration of why I am
sponsoring S.2602.

Having fought time and again as Senate President for
annual increases in municipal aid programs, I am well aware of
the tremendous fiscal pressures under which mayors are forced to
labor each year.

X




October 5, 1988
Page 5

I believe this bill relieves those pressures now and in
the future. And I hope you will agree that I have not only
listened to the League's concerns, but have gone a long way to

addressing each one.
e t ul}fﬁ:;;f'
;. oo

JOHN F. RUSSO
Senate President

encs.

£Xx






a2

~ Oy U S s RS e O WO OB -

OV U S U RS e €D D O

125 W o e oy U e L bs i € D a0 -3

§=7033

[UVAE PCLICE

) FIROEN ONL?
QOVZRED PATROLS

$986,520, 219
1,031,847, 654
1,078,785,675
1,026,356, 536
1,176,079, 81
1,226,501, 19
1,278, 209,380
1,321,280, 841
1,395,336, 362
1,442,013,628
1,499,423,516
1,558,219, 767
1,613,828,275
1,688,404, 128
1, 8,835,515
1,822,587, 593
1,882,131,24
1,455,519, 210
3,031,014,283
2,119,165,158
273,600,326
$047,308, 548
2,124,565,554
2,436,012, 500
2,545,998,935
2,674,087, 366
:,506,588,841 3
1,34,578,70 1
1,653,839, 839
7,48,52L,863
1,410,646, 831
3,580,494,

3,760,563, 881
1,343,557,3%5
1,146,027, 19
4,21,328,551
4,570,594,978
4,799,544, 127
5,019,521, 964
5,291,498, 062
5,556,072, 968
5,833,876,613
§,125,570, 44
6,43L,848,968

oM
CCVERED
PATRL

$986,520,219
1,825,886, 238
1,087,538, 541
1,142,023,463
1,199,121,492
1,259,077, 567
1,322,331,445
1,388,133,007
1,487,529, 648
1,536,416,651
1,606,337, 484
1,687,284,558
1,771,648,576
1,860, 232,965
1,653,242,535
2,050,504, 683
1,153,148,9:7
2,261,022,413
2,314,178,533
2,492,587, 460
2,617,531,833
2,746,408,425
2,385,828, 846
1,010,126, 288
3,181,626,303
5,040,107 618

507,742,939

683,130,149
1,867, 386,656
4,060,652, 583
4,263,683,538
4,476,367, 118

4,760,711, 101
1,935,746, 656
5,182,513,989
S, 441,665, 365
§,713,73,70
5,959, 436,309
§,292,402,454
6,614,372,577
6,345,091, 265
7,292,345, 766
7,656,962,255
§,639,612,587

FCLITE A0 FIREYEN'S REIRDENT

STATE OF NTA JIRSEY

€05TS X3 CHAFTRR 105 AMALYSZS
3¢ T2 LZVEL PERCERT OF PAY JUDDNG = 7% INTREST

CORT % TAFTR 10§ COITRIBUTIN

STATE DO Ml
CUPTER 199 CEAFTIR 109 CRAPTIR .o
SORTRIBUTIOR  COYTRISOTION CORTRISUTION
9,310,130 99,865,202 $29,176,335
2,706,69  10,358,862  30,635,1%
2,290,504 10,875,385 32,168,310
12,385,080 13,426,205 13,715,299
472,563 11,901,205, 35,464,018
2,646,443 12,550,776 37,297,219
5,078,766 13,220,310 39,099,030
TN T 13,581,330 41,054,004
£,91,000 14,575,297 43,106,736
29,957,506 15,364,167 45,262,002
0,455,800 16,069,375 47,328,1%
13,608,630 15,870,300 49,501,415
1,660,000 17,7I6,486  5:,396,507
36,414,222 18,602,310 55,016,332
8,204,705 19,52,45  57,767,249
16,146,459 . 20,509,047 56,555,506
12,153,782 21,534,459 63,68,281
WLATL 2,601,00 66,872,695
A58 2,040,785 ™,26,330
48,798,277 13,875 1170140
51,238,186 26,175,218 77,413,504
£3,800,095 27,464,088 81,284,.7
55,490,100 22,858,288 5,34¢,338
$9,014,605 39,301,200 83,615,608
52,280,335 31,316,263 94,036,598
85,354,352 13,407,076 38,801,428
63,866,082 35,077,450 103,741,488 -
72,07,270 36,8300 108,928,50
75,702,136 38,672,867 114,375,603
79,467,263 40,566,516 120,992,753
83,461,805 42,636,825 126,098, 441
87,634,685 44,768,677 132,403,363
82,015,420 47,000,111 139,023,531
36,617,241 49,357,467 145,974,707
101,448,103 51,325,340 153,273,443
106,520,508 54,416,607 160,537,115
103,846,533 57,137,437 168,383,371
117,435,860 53,094,309 177,433,169
123,318,683 62,994,325 186,304,828
120,476,343 66,143,726 195,526,069
135,995,160 69,450,512 208,401,072
2,747,668 72,923,458 235,671,126
149,388,052 76,569,631 226,434,682
157,173,204 80,305,112 237,777,438

/4

JC‘I’"’(

PRCPCSED CA109 CNTRIZITION FOR FUTURE FOLICE & FIRDGEN oMLY
STAE fow ) EPLOTEE AL
CHAPTER 109 CEAFTER 109 CHAPTSR 103 CHAPTRR 109

CRTRIZTIN  CONTRI3UTION  CCRTRIBCTION  CONTRIBOT!
§17,720,805  §21,899,820  $9,865,202  $49,485,327
18,535,023 22,906,051 15,318,473 51,759,554
19,378,236 22,343,113 10,787,807 54,1l4,248
20,241,665 25,315,161 11,268,569 36,525,198
21,125,850 26,107,862 11,760,797  32,9%,5i¢
CW0LETT TR, 005 0 12,265,072 61,504,054
22,360,409 28,375,056 12,782,099 64,117,564
2,013,700 20,553,182 13,312,808 6,779,710
24,853,708 30,764,276 13,853,370 69,315,354
3,930,90 0,479 14,420,196 72,334,589
26,334,057 33,285,791 14,994,235 75,214,083
99,17 W,50,1 15,582,708 78,165,573
29,078,318 35,936,464 16,182,280 81,203,665
30,202,364 17,325,589 16,814,041 84,342,5%¢
51,360,344 38,755,365 17,158,355 87,574,601
3,559,43  4C,27,53 19,125,786 90,322,568
33,808,613 41,781,542 18,821,312 94,4il,468
WALTB94 43,209,58¢ 19,550,191 98,067,665
36,482,997 45,086,601 20,310,141 101,878,729
3M505,312 6,844,246 21,101,952 105,851,600
2,004,018 48,280,855 21,736,008 108,032,318
40,168,243 49,388,099 22,473,065 112,733,4lL
1,805,664 51,825,152 23,45,656 117,106,473
3,787,832 S,077,163  %,260,115 122,195,209
5,808,482 56,807,876 25,499,985 127,813,048
48,034,475 55,362,220 25,790,874 134,137,5M
56,424,593 62,303,833 28,065,889 140,734,115
32,929,200 65,415,275 29,463,798 147,306,285
85,574,465  65,630,34  30,938,399 155,193,198
54,353,005 72,104,123 32,485,207 162,952,345
61,270,638 79,719,809 34,109,468 171,099,916
64,334,170 79,505,800 35,814,342 179,654,911
67,550,379 83,461,090 17,605,689 188,637,558
70,928,423 87,655,144 19,485,973 198,063,541
T AT4,84 92,037,902 41,460,272 207,972,018
78,198,586 96,638,797 43,533,286 218,371,668
82,108,515 101,471,786 45,709,950 229,290,351
86,213,941 106,545,376 47,395,447 246,754,754
30,524,838 111,870,645 50,395,220 252,792,502
95,050,870 117,466,277 52,914,981 265,432,127
99,803,433 123,339,591 55,560,730 278,703,733
104,793,384 - 125,506,570 58,328,766 292,638,320
110,633,263 135,981,899 61,285,704 307,270,366
115,534,926 142,780,394  64,315,450- 122,634,409



VIR

1987
1988
1989
1990
1991
2392
1993
1994
1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
. 2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
01
Q012
2013
0L4
0.5
016
017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
208
2024
05

CURRENT LAW CONTRIBUTION PROVECTION

FRE FOUD ALL QOLAS ; 73 [JPIREST
" PROPOSED IYPROVEMTIT IOR CORREXT XDGIRS AXD IUTURE LIW OFTICIRS OALY
VSEER YT TITRANTS -

STATE OF JEW JERSTY
ICT & MROEX'S RETIRDEN? STSTIM
CURRLYE LAW VS PROPGSED 30 YELAR LZVEL PERCEXT O LAW OPFIZERS PAY FUXDING
ANYCAL LMORTIZATION OF SEORTFALL IX PAY

PERS BENIFLIS

PROPCSZD 10 YEAR LIVZL PERCDNT OF PAY COXTRIBOTION

SAVIY
CTRREX?T  ACCROED  CTRREYT  CSRAET (arr¥is.d PROPOSED  DP20P0SED  PROPOSDD  FROPOSD vkl
JOPMAL  LIABILITT STATE CH109  AD %0C 207AL YORMAL  PAST SIRVICE STATE C3109 TOTAL
st PATMENT CONTRIBOTION  COLA  COBTRIZCTION COST  CONTRINTIION CONTRIBCTION CONTRIZOTION  s30pc
§164,156,964 §9,915,033 §19,311,133 §22,092,099 $2.5,475,230 §104,472,491 $74,186,320  $17,720,305 $196,379,617  §13,00¢
170,349,932 9,915,033 20,276,690 25,792,550 226,834,205 109,544,170 30,117,061 13,535,023 203,196,262 1883
177,630,439 9,915,003 21,290,524 29,829,408 233,665,405 114,844,665 83,761,823 19,378,236 27,984,724  20,54c
184,287,123 9,915,033 22,355,051 34,20L,9% 250,759,202 120,363,753 47,493,970 . 20,241,665 228,099,389 22,557
190,803,350 9,915,033 21,472,403 38,921,630 263,113,316 126,111,377 91,315,834 21,125,851 233,553,061 34,565
197,170,406 9,915,033 24,646,443 43,999,524 275,731,406 132,094,640 95,231,240 22,031,677 249,361,557  26,36%
203,383,137 9,915,003 25,878,766 49,462,812 283,839,748 138,337,811 99,245,657 22,960,409 260,543,977 2,04
209,445,466 9,915,033 27,172,704 65,338,857 301,872,060 144,342,904 103,366,313 23,913,720 272,122,936 23,74
213,363,238 9,915,033 28,531,339 61,631,493 315,446,103 151,628,748 107,602,282 24,893,708 284,124,738 31,12
41,169,908 9,915,033 29,957,906 66,323,554 329,366,401 158,712,036 111,964,543 25,902,914 296,579,434 32,72
226,660,043 9,915,033 31,455,301 75,423,457 343,454,334 166,089,149 116,421,626 26,934,057 309,444,831 34,00
231,884,093 9,915,033 133,028,591 82,971,521 387,799,238 173,730,897 120,990,777 27,991,127 322,762,801 38,03
26,502,532 9,915,033 34,680,021 90,984,916 - 372,432,502 181,310,413 125,692,720 29,078,918 336,582,0%0 - 15,5
21,789,404 9,913,033 36,414,022 99,337,716 347,506,175 150,203,042 130,551,375 30,202,96¢ 350,957,380 36,54
246,433,219 9,915,013 38,23¢,723 108,153,687 402,741,662 198,966,919 135,554,103 31,360,341 365,881,363 36,86
350,974,742 9,915,033 40,146,459 117,258,759 413,294,993 208,134,414 140,736,319 32,559,263 381,429,977 36,36
255,538,204 9,915,033 42,153,732 126,710,35l 34,317,377 217,740,237 146,136,683 33,808,613 397,685,333 16,63
260,213,881 9,915,033 44,261,471 136,435,141 450,337,526 227,320,938 151,796,007 35,137,894 414,734,329 1€,20
265,046,377 9,915,033 46,474,545 146,573,376 468,010,331 238,385,250 157,696,581 36,482,987 432,564,325 38,44
269,823,927 9,915,013 43,798,272 156,973,612 435,515,844 249,454,475 163,844,536 37,305,312 451,204,323 34,30
267,364,073 9,915,033 51,233,136 167,680,430 496,197,722 260,327,357 163,767,855 39,044,318 468,139,531 28,08
267,430,337 9,915,033 53,300,098 178,631,974 509,827,439 272,014,596 174,490,479 40,363,243 436,873,318 22,%¢
mmmsmm&mmmmmuwwsmwmmmm 11,935,664 507,362,543 19,68
479,119,049 9,915,033 59,314,605 201,25, 444 549,564,130 298,313,605 189,142,306 43, 757,932 531,213,841  ig,3f
390,114,798 9,915,033 62,280,335 212,681,405 574,991,571 312,932,385 197,992,774 4,00 €,482 556,730,641 18,2
303,323,000 0 65,394,350 224,178,525 592,900,876 323,449,367 207,627,528 48,034,475 54,111,370 3,71
318,038,#91 0 63,664,069 235,716,087 622,418,817 344,826,129 217,91¢ 815 50,414,593 613,156,237 9,2
333,348,953 0 72,097,213 247,261,850 €53,171,076 362,054,530 228,784,921  $2,929,232 643,783,674 9,4
350,476,859 0 75,702,136 258,814,821 684,993,317 380,134,630 240,218,902 55,574,465 675,%4¢,047 8,5
367,996,826 0 79,487,243 270,355,830 717,339,899 399,162,025 252,229,053 58,353,005 709,744,083 3,0
336,396,320 0 83,461,805 221,866,122 751,724,048 419,120,092 0 61,210,838 430,330,730 271,31
405,716,137 0 87,634,686 293,252,781 786,603,603 440,076,096 0 64,334,170 504,410,267 232,1
426,001,944 0 92,016,420 304,777,936 322,796,239 462,079,901 0 67,550,879 529,630,780 293,!
447,302,041 0 936,617,241 316,175,371 360,094,653 435,133,396 0 70,828,423 556,112,319 303,9
469,667,143 0 101,448,103 327,510,952 398,626,158 509, 443,09: 0 TE4T4, 844 533,917,938 3,7
493,150,500 0 106,520,508 338,820,434 938,491,442 534,915,246 0 73,198,536 613,113,832 325,3
517,308,025 0 111,845,533 250,..4,642 979,769,200 561,661,008 0 82,108,515 643,769,523 239,9
543,698,426 0 117,333,860 361,414,073 1,022,551,359 589,744,058 0 36,203,941 675,958,000 346,¢
570,883,347 0 123,310,803 372,776,104 1,066,970,25¢ 619,231,261 0 90,524,638 729,755,899  357,:
111
1-01-88

K




Xé

e Leidy
R R IERSE I

TOUN WiHE

ARSECUN CITY
ADULT DIAL
ALLENDALE EORO
ALLEWNHURST BROR
ALPHA EORO
ALFINE BORO

ANCOR~ FSYCH HOSP

ASBURY PARK
ASBUKY FARK

ATL H!GHLANDS
ATLANTIC CO
ATLANTIC COUNTY
ATLANTIC CTY F
ATLANTIC CTY P
AUDUKON BOKO
AUDUBON PARK BO
AVALON BORO
AVON BY SEA

, BARRINCTON BOK
" BAYONNE CITY
. BAYONNE CITY
: BEDHINISTERK VM

BELLEVILLE TOUN
BELLMAUK BOKO

- BELMAR BOKO -
. BERCEN COUNTY -
. BERCEN COUNTY.
- BERCENFIELD

BERKELEY HEIGHY
BERKELEY TWe
BERLIN BOKO
BERNARDS TupP
BERNARDSVILLE
BEVERLY C1TY
BLOOKI'TELD
bLOOAI 1ELD
BOCOVA BOKOUCH
BOONTON TOWN
KOONTON TUP

BOR €HGLUD CLFF
FORDENTOUN

& TREATHY

AalL&i LIS LN

CURRL 1)
HORHAL CLSY

4,058.445
4,084.82
2,458.24
2,370.67
146,084.7:
602,500.77
3,598.067
273,818.92
3.60
16€,782.34
3603,871.53
93,249.34
49,549_93
13,4644.80
71,494.2¢
24,443.80
£25,042.30
0.060

85,420.89

243,059.43
479,852.34
1.404,358.04
2,272,302.146
80,974.23
13,881.75
87,4643.55
45,047.3¢
79.319.22
1,6813,387.26
. 0.00
60,032.44
859,400.09
74,792.14
128,913.41
1,712,402.2¢6
590,594.87
318,904.93
118,579.92
241,042.48
59,741.59
130,393.70
88,845.59
11,934.24
1,222,950.14
0.00
114,560.54
107,236.15
38,994.17
192,536.78
29.446.62

ClLREe T Foefd
SCRYLLE Culi

[N -E-R-N-N-R N K-

as,

14,758
1]
1.243
0

1,333
15,842
27,344

/]

2.847
4,585
7,224
40,052
57,842
J, 12
FAY)
64,487
2,342
3,337
122,509
o

452
2,248
4.244
5,922

134,578
27,038
17.848

5.907
22,644
o

o
4,138
373
72,720
(1)

5.601
5,294
12,932
4,947
1.312

FOLICE ¢ CIRERER S REVISL At SN2
$LU NCECZL KE bk et et
i PRE Fund ALl COLAS

TUOHRLRL SY

20 VLOR LEVEL FERCURY OF FoY

1907 FAYEDLL

feain b,
Ctba Gy

9.00
9.00

<, 00
0.00
0.00
.20
©.00
0.00
$.00
520.40
0.00
6.00
3.254.40
YT A |
§27.42
1i5.20
£4,1:3.40
0.00
43£.722
1,763.40
5,185.16
211,739.52
214,041.28
?.677.08
5,855.92
0.00
2,152.80
3,3609.94
233,994.34
0.00

4,983.722°

113,442.40
9.498.48
18,032.14

150,488.546

30,032.52
38,774.16
18,130.48
11,220.16
222.34
3,771.48
18,364.008
429.96
174,527.2
0.60
12,403.40
12,544.44

6.00'

7.873.92
, 737,92

Cuk LEail
TOVAL CeST

4,058.44
4,064.862
2.850 .04
2,270,087
16,084.72
&02,300.79
3,598.07
202,U00.92
¢.00
145,609.02
3:0,£27.53
©5,249.38
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93,745.34
20,454.47
152,130.55

50,342.16

85,944.40
2,169,890.62
0.60
45,648.18
1,025,090.49
80,554.42
152,062.57?
1,992,669.32
847,645.39

. 375,529.09
162,617.60
274,934.84
59,943.95
134,165.18
111,347.47
12,737.47
1.470.197.42
0.00
134,945.14
125,074.59
51,928.17
207,377.70
39,490.74

ANEENRE
w0k LOST

147.415.483

- 305,366.80
1,022,345, 60
1.445,134.614
51.533.48
8,0834.40
55,777.95
29.174.10
50.480.52
1,154,022.'78
0.60
38,205.75
5446,937.92
47,599.08
82,042.85
1,0689,804.40
375,08465.<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>